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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT

We are delighted to announce that a record performance was achieved for the year ended
31" December 2006 which saw net earnings surpass Baht 1 Billion for the first time in the
history of the Company.

This was very much due to the strong performance of the property sales division which
achieved an excellent performance, whilst the hotels experienced difficult market conditions
as Phuket continued to recover from the effects of the Tsunami throughout 2006. It is only
now, in the current 2006/2007 high season, that we can consider to be fully recovered from
this disastrous event. The critical first quarter of 2006 saw lower than traditional levels of
tourist arrivals and the lack of direct flights from our key feeder markets of Hong Kong and
Japan had a particularly adverse impact on our low season business levels which was further
exacerbated by the soccer World Cup which traditionally results in decreased travel within
the region.

The hotels in Laguna Phuket took the opportunity of the low business levels to expand and
renovate their room inventory in order to capitalise on what we are expecting to be more
favorable market conditions in 2007. Banyan Tree Phuket and Sheraton Grande Laguna
Phuket have both grown their room inventory to include the spectacular 22 Banyan Tree
Double Pool Villas and Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket has also added a brand-new wing
of 45 Grande Rooms, all with stunning views over the lagoon. Dusit Laguna Resort will also
soon be entering the luxury villa market with the construction of its two-bedroom,
three-storey villas all of which have a rooftop plunge pool. These are scheduled to be
completed by the first half of 2008.

The upgrading of the hotels in 2006 has included a selection of Banyan Tree’s Deluxe
Villas being converted to Plunge Pool Villas, Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket undergoing
a multi-million dollar refurbishment and renovation program, covering all guest rooms,
meeting facilities and select restaurants, Dusit Laguna Resort has introduced 30
contemporary-styled Club Rooms and Laguna Beach Resort has renovated 172 guest
rooms to a fresh modern style.

The record performance of the property sales division was underpinned by strong sales of
the popular residences and town homes products. However the exceptional performance
was largely due to the sale of 8 Banyan Tree Double Pool villa’s at prices ranging from
US$1.75 million to US$4.5 million which resulted in property sales revenues being 232 percent
higher than in 2005. The Phuket property market continues to grow at a healthy rate and
Laguna Phukets position as the leading property developer on the island means that we
are well place to take advantage of the favorable market conditions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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The Laguna Holiday Club continued its development with the opening of the 79-suite
Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort in October last year, a resort dedicated to the members
of our vacation club. This is a key part of our strategy to expand this very successful
business to grow both throughout Thailand and internationally in the next few years.

Outside of Phuket, our investment in the Banyan Tree Lijiang in People’s Republic of China
was completed and opened for business in the middle of 2006.

As a result we feel that with our expansion programs in all of the business segments of the
Group and the investments that have been made in recent years both within and outside
of Laguna Phuket, that we are well placed to achieve sustained growth in the forthcoming
years over and above the excellent performance in 2006.

However it is important that we are constantly mindful of the fact that the tourism industry,
within which we operate, is continually susceptible to event shocks which can have such a
marked impact on the operating performance of the group. Such events over recent years
have ranged from the 911 terrorist attacks in New York in 2001 to the devastating Tsunami
in December 2004, and the potential of such events in the future cannot be ignored.
With this in mind it is essential that we maintain the strength of our balance sheet and a
comfortable level of cash resources, particularly in periods of expansion, in order that we
are well placed to be able to cope with such events if and when they arise.

Finally, there is no substitute for a personal tour of the hotels and the residential projects
of Laguna Phuket which continue to be enhanced year by year. We have welcomed a number
of shareholders to Phuket in 2006 and we hope to do so again in 2007. If your travel plans
bring you in this direction, please let us know and we would be delighted to meet you

during your trip.
Ho Kwon Ping
Chairman
y &
L R e
Surapon Supratya Ho Kwoncjan Michael R. Ayling
Group Managing Director Managing Director Managing Director
(Design Services) (Laguna Phuket)
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Information from
Consolidated Statements

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Total Shareholders’ Equity
Revenue from Hotel Operations

Revenue from Property
Development Operations

Total Revenues

Operating Profit
Depreciation, Amortization
and Provision

Interest Expense

Income Tax

Minority Interests

Net Profit before extraordinary item
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- Reversal of provision for Impairment
(Provision for impairment)

- Minority Interest

Net (Loss) Profit
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Information from
Consolidated Statements

Return on Total Revenue (
Return on Total Equity (%)
Return on Total Assets (%)
Earnings Per Share (Baht)
Dividend Per Share (Baht)

Book Value Per Share (Baht)
Net Asset Value Per Share (Baht)

** g Suiifinenuil aesnssumaing 16 weldeduifumalushn  ** At the time of printing this report, a Baht 2.50 per share

Yuaz 2.50 1M Lwiag:i:'mfmammgﬁmﬂﬂﬁﬂwgu niyiernlszing final dividend had been proposed by the Board of Directors

but had not been approved by the Annual General Meeting.

s1gv1uls:91U 2549

usS¥n a1gun § osn ueus loifa d91dm (UWIBU)




n1sAdUSsSNoYavUsSENY

CoOMPANY PROFILE

V3NN 1011 3 @3N ueud latiia 100 (3H1vY) Huiizin uaz
vousudunaldlugiusuiinwaungsdalsansuuasging
o “mamiwd  MjaniuluFesqunmuazmseysny mwinadon
wonmilennganalsauslundo s gite FaflugsAandnud
U3Ena daldveenamsdugsnananne amsumsng gsnemailu
ihonhuinaneImAmuTIna  mauimsiufigudnadm
T wmsulsznoudisiny  wasifisznoumavioaiion dagine
ﬁu’wu@ﬁﬂdnmﬁf"lﬁﬁﬁamﬁyamguuam Sy Seanuudaunsalums
auiunuvengui esnldiluedied

Us:dRAowituuivavuseng

U3HN a1 3 o5 woud laia 110 (Way) GuAUNININMS
flu umilvesmsvenegsnavesnguisunlnen delinngiuves
o . Y B - 4
paAnsnudaunss naluifaqiiu uazdounaall fall 2459 Fafluiln
o1 U oA aw o LN v o a X
fnoas AeuiEn Nea Aefossu dhvesa Idtenulinvu
' = & awv 4 o a a A ¢ (O TP & %
aglsfimy maflunsindeduiiugsnes esnediailud sziu 1d
Sy XA oy A PN '
Suduvwiedul 2523 wewela a9 Th dszmunssumsvesngu
53NN/ e Aunumiiesdynenmanamumezgiia

Tsausniiud 3 ngamm

Banyan Tree Bangl(ol(

ANNUAL REPORT 2006

LAGUNA REsoRrRTs & HoTELs PueLic CoMPANY LIMITED

LAGUNA REsoRTs & HoTELs PuBLic CoMPANY LIMITED
has gained the reputation as a responsible developer
whose interests combine hotels and property with an
emphasis on quality and environmental protection. In
addition to its core hotel business at Laguna Phuket, the
Company has successfully diversified into property
development, a holiday club operation, managing a
shopping centre, a wedding chapel and a tour operation,
all of which support and strengthen the operations of its
established resorts.

CoMPANY HisTORY

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Plc. was originally part of the
diversified Thai Wah group of companies which has a
corporate strength dating back to 1916, when the founding
company, the Wah-Chang Corporation of New York, was
established.

The birth of an independent resort company, however,
dates from the early 1980’s when Ho Kwon Ping,
Chairman of the Wah-Chang/Thai Wah Group, discovered
an abandoned tin mining site at Bangtao Bay on Phuket
Island in southern Thailand. He immediately recognised
the potential for developing the area into a premier
resort.

Thus the Thai Wah Resorts Development Company
Limited was founded in 1983 and a decade later was listed
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Subsequently, in May
1998, the Company’s name was changed to Laguna
Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited to better
reflect its core business operations.

CORPORATE MissioN

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Plc. has a clearly defined
corporate mission designed to further its business aims
and generate maximum returns for its shareholders.
Principal in the Company’s mission statement is to

include a culture of cooperation between the hotels and
business units to ensure a positive experience for each
and every hotel guest and home owner in Laguna
Phuket, its most significant investment. In order to avoid
an over reliance on its operations in Laguna Phuket, the
Company continues to diversify its investment portfolio
away from Phuket by investing in projects in other parts
of Thailand and within the South East Asia region and the
People's Republic of China. Paramount in its mission of
generating continued growth through expansion,
innovation and maximisation of market share, the
Company seeks to conduct its operations in an

environmentally sensitive manner.
VisioN

To be the leading international hotel and property
developer with full commitment to environmental
protection, social responsibility and maximum satisfaction
to all stakeholders.

BusINESs ACTIVITIES

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Plc’s business activities include
the operation and management of Laguna Phuket, as
well as its investment in the Banyan Tree Bangkok which
was purchased in March 2005 and its investment in the
Banyan Tree in Lijiang, the People’s Republic of China,
which opened in 2006. The Company also has
investments in selected overseas properties.
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Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort

BANYAN TREE BANGKOK AND OFFICE RENTAL
Banyan Tree Bangkok

Located in the central business district of Bangkok, the
Banyan Tree Bangkok is a 216-suite hotel managed by
Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorts Pte. Ltd. A Banyan Tree
Spa operates within the hotel. The Banyan Tree Bangkok
targets business travelers as well as the wholesale
business and independent tourist markets.

Office Rental

Strategically located on South Sathorn Road, Thai Wah
Tower | is a 24-storey granite clad building and is one of the
very first office condominium buildings in Bangkok. The
entire building has approximately 20,000 sq.m. of usable
area of which 14,259 sq.m. is owned by the Group. Through
the years the building has maintained its reputation as a
premium office building with timely refurbishments.

Opened in late 1995, Thai Wah Tower I, is a 6o-storey
mixed use building situated next to Thai Wah Tower .
Apart from providing 16,500 sq.m. of office premises on
floors 10 to 32, Tower Il is also home to the Banyan Tree
Bangkok which is located on the higher floors of the
same building. The plan is to convert the majority of the
office premises in Thai Wah Tower Il into hotel facilities
over the next two years.

TsauaNainin I% 3 o
a Beach Resort

LAGUNA PHUKET

Established as Asia’s finest destination resort, Laguna
Phuket comprises six deluxe hotels:

Banyan Tree Phuket, opened in 1995, features 148
exclusive villas and a leading, holistic spa. The resort and spa
are managed by Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorts Pte. Ltd.

Dusit Laguna Resort, opened in 1987, offers beachfront
accommodation in 226 rooms and suites managed by
Dusit Hotels and Resorts. Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorts
Pte. Ltd. operates an Angsana Spa within the Dusit
Laguna Resort’s grounds.

Laguna Beach Resort, opened in 1991, comprises 254
superior rooms and suites. The property is owner-operated.
Another Angsana Spa operates next door to Laguna
Beach Resort.

Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket, opened in 1992, features
415 superbly appointed rooms, suites and villas, and is a
member of the Starwood Luxury Collection. Angsana Spa
operates a facility within this hotel.

Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort, opened in 2006, as a
dedicated resort for members of the Laguna Holiday
Club, comprises 79 suites in three room types and is
owner-operated.

In addition to these core properties, Laguna Phuket also
provides the following facilities:

Allamanda Laguna Phuket, opened in 1993, is managed by
Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorts Pte. Ltd. This innovative
apartment-style resort features 214 one- and two-
bedroom suites and duplexes. A fourth Angsana Spa
operates within the grounds of the Allamanda.

Laguna Phuket Golf Club, opened in 1992, is a resort style
18-hole, par-71 golf course managed by Banyan Tree
Hotels & Resorts Pte. Ltd.
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Quest Laguna Phuket Adventuse

Quest Laguna Phuket Adventure, opened in 1994,
offering dynamic programs for corporate training. The
facility is managed by Sheraton Overseas Management
Corporation.

Canal Village Laguna Shopping, opened in 1994, is an
owner-managed boutique shopping centre with 59 leased
outlets.

Banyan Tree and Angsana Gallery, a chain of retail outlets
specialising in indigenous handicrafts and spa products,
operates 14 outlets located within Laguna Phuket at the
hotels, spas, and Canal Village shopping centre.

Laguna Holiday Club, previously known as Allamanda
Vacation Club, opened in 1998, selling memberships that
entitle participants to annual vacations at the Allamanda
Laguna Phuket, Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket,
Sheraton Golf Villas, Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort
and the Angsana Resort & Spa in Bintan Indonesia, as
well as at over 4,000 resorts in more than 100 countries
through reciprocal arrangements with RCI and Interval
International.

Laguna Property Sales offers residential and vacation
properties such as Laguna Village Villas (duplex apartments),
Laguna Townhomes (semi-detached villas) and Laguna
Residences (detached villas). In addition, hotel residences
are offered for sale in the Dusit Laguna Resort (semi-
detached Dusit Laguna Villas) and the Banyan Tree
Phuket (semi-detached Two Bedroom Pool Villas and the

new ultra luxurious detached Banyan Tree DoublePool

Villas).

Laguna Wedding Chapel is Thailand’s first resort
wedding chapel offering comprehensive wedding
packages. Opened in early 2005, the facility is managed
by South Pacific Bridal Thailand, a Japan-based company
that specialises in arranging top-quality weddings at
exotic island destinations.

Laguna Service Company Limited, established in 1991, is
a non-profit company providing laundry, water supply,
inter-resort transport and other centralised services for
the six Laguna hotels and ancillary operations.

OVERSEAS INVESTMENT IN HOTELS AND RESORTS

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Plc. invests in selected overseas
properties through its 19.8 percent shareholding in
Tropical Resorts Limited and TRL Investment Ltd.

Banyan Tree Lijiang, opened in 2006, a joint venture
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
between Laguna Banyan Tree Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Banyan Tree Holdings
Limited. The property features s5 luxurious villas,
restaurants, bar, spa complex, gallery shop, gym, treks
and tours.
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Laguna Village Villa:

DEVELOPMENTS IN 2006

The Laguna Phuket hotels undertook major renovation
works during 2006 as follows:

Banyan Tree Phuket completed the conversion of 12
Deluxe Villas into Plunge Pool Villas and Lagoon Plunge
Pool Villas. In addition, construction was substantially
completed of 22 ultra luxurious Double Pool Villas which
will be available for property investment but will be
managed by the Banyan Tree.

Dusit Laguna Resort upgraded 30 rooms to a new room
type called the Dusit Club Room. In addition, construction
commenced on 28 Dusit Laguna Villas which will be
available for property investment but will be managed by
Dusit Laguna.

Laguna Beach Resort renovated the Resort’s entire North
Wing comprising 172 rooms.

Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket completed a multi-
million dollar refurbishment of all resort rooms and
opened a brand new Grande Room wing comprising
45 rooms, all with private balconies and views of the
lagoon. All resort rooms and villas have been wi-fi
enabled, joining the public areas, lobby and meeting
facilities.

Banyan Tree Bangkok re-launched its suites and
restaurants after four months of major refurbishment.

Banyan Tree Lijiang opened in 2006 offering five-star
amenities, including extensive meeting facilities, tennis
courts, library and games room, as well as the Bai Yun
Chinese restaurant.

Laguna Holiday Club commenced a new sales operation
in Bintan, Indonesia during the year. Construction of the

new Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort comprising
79 suites was completed and the Resort opened in
October. Laguna Holiday Club also purchased inventory
in Cha-Am and Chiang Mai as part of the Club’s ongoing
expansion.

Laguna Property completed construction of 10 Laguna
Residences and 22 Laguna Townhomes in Phase IIl. The
Laguna Village project was successfully released during
the year with sales of 9 Laguna Village Villas, 31 Laguna
Townhomes and 29 Laguna Residences being achieved.
Construction of Laguna Village has commenced and is
expected to be completed in 2007.

The Dusit Laguna Villas were released for sale with
construction commencing on 28 Villas during the year.
They are expected to be completed in mid 2008.

The ultra luxurious Banyan Tree Double Pool Villas were
released for sale to property investors during the year
with eight sales being made while a further three
Two-Bedroom Pool Villas were sold.

FuTurE

While the integrated resort concept of Laguna Phuket
has proved a winning formula since the resort’s inception
19 years ago there continues to be opportunity to
improve the profitability and expand the existing
facilities, particularly in light of the ongoing high demand
for Phuket in terms of both hotel and residential
accommodation and a hotel supply which is not expanding

very quickly.
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At the Banyan Tree Phuket the new 22 high end Double
Pool Villas that were completed in 2006 have been well
received, and there are plans to add a further 12 Double
Pool Villas in the next phase that will commence
construction in the first half of 2007. 22 additional Two-
bedroom Pool Villas will also commence construction in
the first half of 2007.

At the Dusit Laguna Resort 28 pool villas will be built
during 2007 and 2008 to provide a high end product for
this hotel. The design of a seventh resort at Laguna
Phuket, situated on the last remaining beach site is being
drawn up. This will be branded Angsana Phuket, and it is
planned to commence construction in late 2007.

Many of the hotel rooms in Laguna Phuket have been
renovated in 2006, with plans in 2007 to complete the room
renovation at the Laguna Beach Resort and commence
the renovation of the rooms at the Dusit Laguna Resort
which will be completed during 2007 and 2008.

The Laguna Residence and Laguna Townhome products
have proven to be extremely popular and Phase | of
Laguna Village is projected to be sold out by the middle
of 2007. In order to keep pace with the strong demand, a
number of other project sites have been identified and
are in the process of design and obtaining government
approvals so that they can be developed.

In addition, we have two further “resort property sales”
projects released in 2006 of the Double Pool Villas at the
Banyan Tree Phuket (now completed) and the Pool villas
at the Dusit Laguna Resort (scheduled for completion in
mid 2008). We will continue to identify further resort
property sales projects given the popularity of this type of
lifestyle product which also provides a good investment
return.

It is planned to expand the Laguna Holiday Club and a
number of additional locations within the region will be
considered in 2007 as we believe that with the quality of
management and staff now in place that we have the
foundation to expand this operation internationally.
Additional sales offices in Chiang Mai and Cha Am will be
opened in the first quarter of 2007, with the Pattaya sales
office slated to open mid 2007. The opening of a sales
office in Hong Kong later in 2007 will be the start of the
planned international expansion which is expected to
develop into People’s Republic of China in the next two to
three years.

The potential of expanding the Banyan Tree Bangkok has
been started by adding a Japanese and Seafood restaurant
which opened in 2006. Further expansion is currently
underway by renovating existing office space into
additional hotel suites and constructing a ballroom with
additional meeting facilities. These projects will be
completed throughout 2007 and into 2008.

The Company will continue to look for opportunities to
diversify its operations outside of Phuket, and the
purchase of the Banyan Tree Bangkok in 2005 and the
investment in Banyan Tree Lijiang, which opened in 2006
and consists of 55 villas, is the first stage in the
implementation of this strategy.
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NATIONAL CHILDREN’s DAY
Laguna Phuket organized the National Children’s Day
Fun Fair at Laguna Garden opposite Canal Village. The
event provides fun games and special local activities that
the children cannot usually enjoy in everyday life.
Approximately 10,000 children attended the event.
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SEA TURTLE CONSERVATION CEREMONY
Laguna Phuket arranged its annual Sea Turtle
Conservation Ceremony at Dusit Laguna Resort to raise
funds in support of the sea turtle conservation projects of
the Royal Thai Navy, Third Naval Area Command and
Phuket Marine Biological Centre. Baht 209,809 was
presented to both organizations.
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HAGEMEYER CONNECTIONS CONFERENCE
AT SHERATON
Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket was the venue for the
annual conference “Hagemeryer Connections”. The
conference catered for approximately 950 Hagemeyer
delegates. The spend of the program was approximately
Baht 150 million.
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CoMPUTER TRAINING AT LAGUNA PHUKET
Laguna Phuket organized “The IT Brain for Laguna Youth
Camp” to boost the students’ fundamental computer
skills and to encourage children to make the most of their
free time during their school holiday.
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LAGUNA PHUKET HosTs INAUGURAL PHUKET
INTERNATONAL MARATHON
The inaugural Phuket International Marathon hosted at
Laguna Phuket on 18" June was a tremendous success
with more than 1,500 registered runners from 30 countries
partipating in the 42km marathon, 21tkm half-marathon
and 10km fun run.
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BupDHIST LENT DAY
Laguna Phuket arranged a candle float procession to
Thepkrasatree Temple (Wat Baan Don) in Thalang District.
Laguna Phuket participates in the ceremony every year as
part of its long-standing policy of support for local
cultures and traditions.
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BANYAN TREE BANGKOK’s 8TH VERTICAL
MARATHON
The 8" Vertical Marathon in 2006 hosted by Banyan Tree
Bangkok drew 563 competitors and 200 spectators. Baht
508,000 raised by the event, was donated to the “HIV
Formula Feeding Fund”, a Thai Red Cross initiative under
the patronage of Her Royal Highness Princess Soamsawali.

1Agve sy ve1goIn nau
viAasrAusslugiin
[ < 4 ' = '3 < <
o e Tdldanumemde o wenziausnlugiia fu
Uszsmnil Tashidlifldimssadeiemaiissifoniay w wosormns
upr3gn Tsausug e a1l 3 esn Bnmadifansangmneuni
Miguuoutigy Gaa Mundiy

PHUKET HOME FOR THE AGED LUNCHEON
Each year Laguna Phuket hosts lunch for the elders from
Phuket’s Home for the Aged. This year we hosted lunch
at Dusit Laguna Resort’s Casuarina Hut and took them
to see the Thai historic animated movie “Kaan Kluay”.
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MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
53 executive management staff from both Banyan Tree
and Laguna Phuket attended a five-day session program
which was held at Banyan Tree Phuket. The program
provided an in-depth development course that also
served as a platform where participants network and
forge camaraderie with their colleagues round the world.
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LAGUNA PHUKET OPENS NEW HOTEL
Laguna Phuket announced the soft opening of the sixth
deluxe hotel, Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort, a
dedicated new resort for members of the Laguna Holiday
Club. The resort features 79 spacious suites available in
three room types.
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BANYAN TREE LijIANG OPENS
As the first international resort to operate in Lijiang’s old
town, which was declared a UNESCO World Heritage
Site in 1997, Banyan Tree Lijiang features 55 stunning
Naxi-inspired villas. Five-star amenities are on offer
including meeting facilities, tennis court, library and
games room, as well as the Bai Yun Chinese restaurant.
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Loy KRATHONG FESTIVAL
Famous Thai singer, Cathreeya English, was the star
attraction at Laguna Phuket’s Loy Krathong Festival. The
event was co-organized by Laguna Phuket and
Cherngtalay Municipality for the local community.
Together with invited dignitaries Cathreeya released
krathongs under the full-moon.
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EbucATioN SupPORT BY LAGUNA PHUKET

The Laguna Phuket Foundation for Education presented
scholarships in the amount of Baht 237,000 to 40 students
ranging from primary school to university level in order
to support their educational expenses.
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LAGUNA PHUKET TRIATHLON
The 13" Laguna Phuket Triathlon was held on 3
December. With a total of 1,400 athletes from 40 different
countries competing in the individual, team relay and fun
run, this is the largest field ever to compete at Laguna
Phuket.
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LAGUNA PHUKET WINS THAILAND PROPERTY AWARDS

Laguna Phuket has been awarded the Best Interior
Design for the Banyan Tree Double Pool Villas and the
Green Development Award for Laguna Phuket. The
inaugural Thailand Property Awards is organized by the
publishers of the Thailand Property Report.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

FINANCIAL COMMENTARY

The net profit attributable to the shareholders of Baht
1,113 million for the year ended 31" December 2006 was
Baht 1,133 million higher than the prior year. The reason
for the increase in profit was due to the business recovery
from the Tsunami which was severely affected tourism to
Phuket in 2005 coupled with a record performance from
the property sales and holiday club divisions.

This was partially offset by the start-up losses incurred by
Banyan Tree Lijiang hotel which commenced operations
in April 2006 and losses from the office rental operations
in Thai Wah Tower Il in Bangkok due to a number of leases
being terminated for planned conversion to hotel suites.

Other points of note are:

+ Interest income increased by Baht 18 million due to
the higher number of holiday club memberships sold
with deferred payment plans.

¢ Selling and administrative expenses increased by Baht
13 million primarily due to an increase in salary and
wages and legal costs. The increase in legal costs
primarily related to the insurance claim for property
damage and business interruption from the Tsunami

and land related cases.

¢ Aforeign exchange gain of Baht 88 million which was
due to the appreciation of the Baht vs the US dollar

during 2006.

¢ An increase of depreciation of Baht 56 million which
was due to the new Banyan Tree Lijiang hotel, a 45-
room extension to the Sheraton Laguna Grande
Hotel Phuket and a full year of depreciation of Banyan
Tree Bangkok and Thai Wah Tower | and Thai Wah

Tower Il (acquired in March 2005).

¢ Anincrease in interest costs of Baht 64 million which
was due to the loans taken out resulting from the
acquisition of Thai Wah Plaza Limited, loans taken out
to fund the construction of additional room inventory
in Laguna Phuket and the construction of Banyan
Tree Lijiang, and an increase in interest rates during

the year.

+ Taxation was Baht 182 million higher than prior year
due to the signiﬁcant increase in operating proﬁt in

2006.
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¢ Net earnings of minority interest in subsidiaries was
higher than the prior year due to the increase in net
income during the year for the respective hotel and

gallery operations.

For the reasons stated above, the company has shown an
increase in net earnings as compared to the same period
last year.

Economic TRENDS: TOURISM IN THAILAND AND THE
PHUKET MARKET

1. Review of Sales and Marketing Plans

All of the Laguna Phuket and Bangkok hotels and business
units are required to provide a Sales and Marketing Plan
as part of their budget presentation. These all include a
summary of their plans to provide the
budgeted levels of income. For the hotels, the plans
include statistics showing month-by-month comparisons
to prior year and a market segmentation analysis. For the
2007 budgets, we looked at several years’ history due the
unusual business trends in recent years, and set targets
based upon 2006 business levels.

For the 2007 Budget, all budgets assume a conversion
rate of 38 Baht to 1 US Dollar. Approximately 8o percent
of our rooms revenue is contracted in US Dollars.

A summary of the hotel plans is as follows:-

a) Hotel occupancies and average room rates, together
with the resulting revenue per available room, are
analyzed during the budget reviews on a month-by-
month basis. Comparisons are carried out over the
past five years, and in several cases this has meant
substantial changes to the originally submitted budgets.

b) We believe it is important to consider several years to
provide a normalized comparison in the light of
events in recent years such as Bird Flu, SARS, the Bali
bombing, the Tsunami, etc.

c) The hotels exhibit a high level of communication and
cohesion in their Sales and Marketing approach. This
has led to excellent flexibility and different reactions
to changing market conditions. They continue to
work together, but at the same time carve out new
market segments.

d) The very successful Laguna Phuket Plus campaign
can now be switched on and off in reaction to market
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conditions and provides an important delivery from
regional markets in the low season.

e) The Laguna Phuket centralized Destination Marketing
meetings provides a platform for inter-hotel discussion
and the formation of resort wide programs.

f) The focus in 2007 will be to capitalise on what are
expected to be good market conditions, and the
renovation program that was undertaken during 2006
will stand the Laguna Phuket hotels in good stead.
Phuket continues to be popular with both European
and regional travelers and we believe that the
underlying dynamics of Phuket as a holiday destination
will enable us to deliver higher room rates in the

longer term.

g) There continue to be three markets which settle in
Baht, namely, Japan, Australia, and Thailand.

h) The lagunaphuket.com website is now well established
and we plan continued enhancements in 2007.

The property sales sector in Phuket continues to improve
every year and we expect this to continue in 2007,
although recent announcements by the interim military
government regarding legislation that impacts the ability
of foreigners to own property in Thailand may have a
negative sentiment on this sector. For 2007, we will
continue to focus on selling out Laguna Village, the
Banyan Tree Double Pool Villas, and the Dusit Pool Villas.
Despite the excellent results in recent years, this sector is
not without its challenges, and we will stay very close to
market forces to ensure that we continue our leadership
position.

2. The Phuket Situation

There continues to be plenty of development activity on
Phuket, with several new hotel projects being announced
during the year. The Conrad at Cape Panwa is still under
construction with no date of completion and opening
announced (unlikely to be in the first half of 2007) and a
Hyatt Regency is under construction at the southern end
of Nai Yang beach and is planned to be completed in
November 2007. On what we call the “Peninsula Site” just
North of Banyan Tree a Shangri-La resort has been
announced and construction will commence in the first
quarter of 2007 with an expected completion date at the
end of 2008.

In the meantime, the road infrastructure of Phuket
continues to expand. Jung Ceylon, (large shopping centre

s1gv1uls:91U 2549

uUS¥n aiQua § esn neus laiha J10m (Unasu)

25



s1gvIUWanIsA1IduUNs

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

- menduaseadszaniunnlsemageans BuAIAIUN 15 TUNAN

lay mmsﬁumwnauua{

A & vo q ysa A a A4 o A A ag
- 1YNMIVUERN mﬂmﬂwummuumq 3 MNYIVUNNLNDIYAUY

N U Suatudiun 23 woeineu uas

4 o o v oaoan ¥ v
- Wertuminganny Weitiineunyululasnn  aved
2549 nauN seaudneulul 2547 1 safedinnnae

miﬁnﬁmm“lu"lmm usnvesll 2550

Tasamsgudiszguindnuiydenumndinsgmideudell)  uas

13und adaluianusanudifismavedlasansil
3. HNTMIUAIVY

§Inalaanan

TR B 4 = v N = a A
AUV 1 mmmmﬂuﬂ 2549 "lmm msilaaives amna wnatagu

3 ofn Guiinategdunaves a1l Qe vumewam i
Foannuuunion sz181n 30 ¥oa mawlasuuasdu g lussriadl
Ieun manlasumlaairvesnsid wanan  uaznldsuseanlswusm
< a a o ' v ' < a  a ad
({u Tuduia sazmaliilgane Swedudugluuuves dudln wisa
4 Y a g o &

Famseguumaluen nnduidulsuwsuszay 4 arndu Tsausy

32AU 5 A1)

amiagiiadinldsumaiauneie g  edwdeiiies laslimssy

Tasamslsausulnivarslnsanislusznined  aanldnandadu
3 1% a A A '

msne alsausuaeuiea uaslsausulauen Faud daaaiiae

v

P = o & = o R AN '
1oL iﬂﬂluﬂa'lﬁll 2550 @Quuﬁ]zl,ﬁuulﬂ’)'ﬁ]ZﬂQ"lNNWQQWﬂ“UﬂQﬂLIﬂN

9
'

Anaidnluilfestell  edulsfiay  mswannd ayRing

Uszmavzandivumuaulil 2551 udull aail

v o ¢ &4 g a o o
o Tawswedau Fuu ” suilulsausuy@nszay 3 veadum
o Jasamsnun wéd o “waud vesdwweiSy (79 ¥eann
WioN 28UN)
o Tasams 0 @ wsud vumnalivnn (peulaldlouuazinn
ARFIIMIATIUIU 350 H01)
4 A = <
o Tasams iy o1y dsmsles Jewdy
¢ 991N lasansthunnszal suuiuimalumu
¢ s0da MU 3 o fhwinuwiow szhmmgnndeydn
A TsuusnwiFeon vuma i
¢ upanian lpsamsvine 120 e lagdlumswanniiuiu
' a s & £ g A o
FEMIN ABUEN dUN Awuy waz we lo Fadunstn
dulailids alegmamilovedlsausniudg vi
o uirlila T3 3 oin weud 15 Fau ~ Uszneuduieann
150 ¥es waz thwinedes ladugna 25 Wes Aseguu

WUN 240,000 AMTNUNAT ANFIINIA

ANNUAL REPORT 2006

LAGUNA REsoRrTs & HoTELs PusLic CoMPANY LIMITED

in Patong) which was delayed in 2005, soft opened in
December 2006 with the full opening announced for the
first quarter of 2007.

The airport runway extension has not yet been started,
but officials confirm that it is budgeted for the near
future. Following the opening of Suvarnabhumi airport in
Bangkok, a new international terminal at Phuket airport is
scheduled to open in the first half of 2007 and will
provide a much needed facelift to the Phuket airport as
well as increasing the capacity that the airport can handle.

The performance of the tourism industry in Phuket in
2006 was negatively impacted by the lack of direct flights
into Phuket, particularly from the key feeder markets of
Hong Kong and Japan. This is an issue that has been
addressed in the last quarter of 2006 with:

- daily direct flights from Hong Kong which started on
15" December operated by Dragonair;

- Jetstar are now operating 3 direct flights from Sydney
every week which started on 23" November; and

- Russian charters in the last quarter of 2006 are back to
the 2004 levels which will greatly assist the high
yielding first quarter of 2007.

The much vaunted convention centre seems to be mired
in debate, and we still have no clear direction for that
project.

3. Competition
Hotels

The only addition to the competitive set in 2006 was the
opening of the Phuket Pavillions resort located behind
Laguna Phuket overlooking Bangtao beach and this
resort has only 30 pool villas. The changing of ownership
of the Crowne Plaza and rebranding to Movenpick and
the full renovation of the Indigo Pearl on Nai Yang beach
from a 4 star to a 5 star hotel were the only other events
of note during the year.

There continues to be plenty of development activity on
Phuket, with a number of new hotel projects being
announced during the year. As noted above, the Conrad
and Hyatt Regency are unlikely to open until late 2007
and hence no additional inventory will be opened in the
competitive set in the coming year. However there are a
significant number future developments announced that
are scheduled for 2008 and beyond, and these include:
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Alan Zemans high end boutique hotel, Andara
Barama Bay island project (79 pool villas) to be
branded Jumeriah

¢ West Sands project on Mai Khao beach (350 properties
from condominiums to beach front residences)
Cape Yamu - to be managed by GHM
Puravana — a high end villa project in Nai Harn
beach area

¢ Royal Garden Resorts luxury all pool villa next to
the Marriot, on Mai Khao beach

¢ 120 room property on Mai Khao beach, Shangri La
being developed by Durham investments, affiliated
to the Indonsian company JSI on the site north of
Banyan Tree

¢ Raffles Phang Nga Resort and Residences - 150
rooms and 25 luxury residential villas located on
240,000 square metres of beachfront land.

Property

In Property, we continue to see a large number of smaller
developments all over the island and in particular adjacent
to Bangtao beach. The significant developments that will
provide strong competition to Laguna Phuket property are:

¢ West Sands project on Mai Khao

¢ Blue Canyon, if and when they release their golf
course projects

¢ Phase 2 of Roya| Phuket Marina

Otherwise the vast majority of developments are either:

+ smaller and very high end; or
+ are lower end developments and do not compete
with Laguna Property.

The high end developments that compete with the
Banyan Tree (and to a lesser extent the Dusit villas) would
be considered to be:

Andara

Trisara phase 2

Barama Bay

Raffles Phang Nga Resort and Residences
Cape Yamu

* 6 6 o o o

Shangri- La villas
4. Pricing Strategy

The Laguna Phuket hotels are working together better
than ever on price structuring. The discussions inevitably
follow the normal course of competitors, and we will
need to maintain vigilance as we go forward to ensure
maximum average room rates.
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5. Three Year Outlook

After the 1997 economic crisis we have weathered the
storms of the terrorist attacks on the USA and Bali, the
Iraq War, the SARS crisis and Bird Flu and we are now
largely recovered from the damage, both physical and
market-related, of the Tsunami which hit Phuket on 26"
December 2004. As we plan for the future, we hope for
the best, but must also plan for the worst, since it is
reasonable to assume that there may be some more
crises ahead.

In the fourth quarter of 2007 the business levels of the
hotels were finally back to those experienced in 2004 and
we expect to maintain these levels throughout 2007 now
that the air access has improved and the renovations have
been largely completed throughout Laguna Phuket. The
business demand for Property Sales and the Laguna
Holiday Club is showing good signs at the beginning of

2007 and look set to be at or even exceed the 2006 levels.

For the hotels, we have seen a shift back to our traditional
European season from December to March. During
the ‘low’ season, the hotels remain busy, but at a lower
average rate. This is where the opportunity lies in the
coming years. Given the short length of stay of the
regional low season customers, direct flights from the key
feeder markets of Hong Kong, Singapore, Japan, Taiwan
and Korea are so critical. Now that these flights are in
place this will have a positive impact on the low season
performance of the hotels. Such markets will be pursued
by a growing supply in the Phuket market, but we are
optimistic that Laguna Phuket’s brand awareness in the
market will keep us ahead of the competition.

In Property Sales, this is a market which we view with care,
and we must be vigilant for signs that demand has gone
off the boil. For now, however, we can certainly continue
through 2007 at levels similar to 2006, and there is
currently no reason to suppose that there will be any
downturn in the following year, and we believe our
prediction of a continuation of current levels during the
next three years is supportable.
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MR. Ho KwWoNCJAN
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MRr. Ho KwonN PING
014 55 1
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MR. MicHAEL R. AYLIN
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Age 11
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Age 55
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INFORMATION ON THE DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES as at 315 December 2006 LisT oF SuBsIDIARIES AND RELATED COMPANIES

Godo GolAu
ABBREVATION CompPANY NAME IN FuLL

TWT  TWT2
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uSungos
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LAGUNA PHUKET MANAGEMENT TEAM AND EXECUTIVES as at 315 December 2006 LAGUNA PHUKET MANAGEMENT TEAM AND EXECUTIVES as at 315 December 2006

unantinoING18[Uu21 | FRONT ROW FROM LEFT TO RIGHT:

Prasert Boonchu, Hotel Manager, Allamanda Laguna Phuket
szt 53 Yy / goamslsausy / lsaususaaien a1 e

Stephen Magor General Manager, Laguna Beach Resort
Ay wnes / wwmim"lil 7 swsuagin 5 3 edn

Jan M.R. Verduyn General Manager, Dusit Laguna Resort
i nesau / giamaiall 7 Tsusug e mgin 3 o

Pancho Llamas, Area General Manager, Banyan Tree Phuket
fuly en 7 mﬂmim"lﬂﬂi s9ve / Basuiudu v Qe

Michael R. Ayling, Managing Director (Laguna Phuket),
Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
Tuida loda / nssumsEams (@i giffa) 7 ¥ i 3 o weudl Tarffa Sida (v

Roland G. Svensson, Assistant Vice President Hospitality Services, Laguna Grande Limited
Tswaud  Bu " U /ghede1nems uwunmssuseanun / 13EN agun unsud 3109

Jan S. Kirstein, General Manager, Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket
a df mu/ giamaiall / Tsausuwendu unsud agin gifi

Itthipat Chirasathit, Hotel Manager, Laguna Ho|iday Club Phuket Resort
answnt 35z dad / fiamalsausy / susuaigih sednd adu Qi 5 e
1NoNAavo1NG18[UY21 [ SECOND ROW FROM LEFT TO RIGHT:

Pussadee Jaturongsaroch, Accounting Manager, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
A 9gaed 11y 7 Giams weuntiyd / 1En g 3 en weud Taifia S (wnww)

Debra F. Dionysius, Director of Destination Marketing, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
Wus letlide 7 fdamseny] wwunmsamia / 1580 a1 3 o5 weud laifia $1da (uvaw)

Bubpha Prateep Na Ta|ang, Laguna ExcurS|ons Manager, Laguna Excur5|ons Limited
yur Yszid o aane 7 §3ams agin Bndinesau / U3 i Bndinesau e

Niphon Kitisook, Assistant Vice President — Project Control, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
fwus A& v / edernems uwunaugulasams / u5En e 3 o5 weud latfia 91ne (umwu)

Richard M. Skene, Assistant Vice Pre5|dent— Property, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
358 fu 7/ gEedennems uHLANSENIMDSA / U3 a1 3 o5 weud laifia 1w (W)

Stuart D. Readlng, Assistant Vice President — Finance, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
$aa sada 7 gEefdrunems ununtyFuazmstu / 1En a1t 3 o weud laifia S0 ()

Gerardus J.L.M. Van Paassen, Assistant Vice President — Laguna Ho|iday Club, Laguna Ho|iday Club Limited
wenin wiu w5 U/ FHredernems s sednd adu / U3EN M sednd Ay 1na

Huang Wei Yuan , Assistant Vice President — Property Development, Laguna Grande Limited
M IMe1eI/ §E8f11nems ukuniaue ImiBuning / UsEn agu unsud 91ne

Passapong Nantarak, Assistant Vice President — Legal, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
M way Wumsny 7 dedennems uwunngring / U3Eh a1 3 ofn weud lafia 910w (wmaw)

Loh Hai Thong, Assistant Vice President — Services, Laguna Service Company Limited
Ta g mea / fahedennoms ununmanidms 7 U5 aqhwesd e

Niyom Tassaneetipagorn, Assistant Vice President — Corporate Affairs and Community Relations,
Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited

foy Wrlidiwing / ganeddnems uwunisz wnuosdnIuazgury WWUS /

3N M1 5 oin woud lafia inn (wmnaw)

Sa||y Ho, Senior Manager — Finance & Administration, Laguna Grande Limited
uwaa lo / fvamsen]  uwunMIRLUEAZMTUTMS / USEN a1t unsud 910A

Suthasinee Rukmit, Director of Community Centre, Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
5171 $ndies 7 diamsen] uwunguay WWUS 7 1SEn g1 5 esn woud lafia e (uvna)
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INCOME STRUCTURE AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

2549 [ 2006 2548 [ 2005 2547 [ 2004

2549 [ 2006 2548 [ 2005 2547 [ 2004

<

VU N3 e Banyan Tree Phuket

UKW - laumdy Available Rooms - average

FATNMIENND (%) Occupancy (%)

Afoarinlaoimds (M)  Average Rate (Baht)

MLio® : wuun % WLiow : Wuun % WLio® : wuun %
BAHT 000's BAHT o000's BAHT 000's

gldnreann Room Revenue

gldnnemIuazinieddy  F&B Revenue

Meldduq Other Revenue

Teldsim Total Revenue

Whwelsansuiudu w3 gifia Aeusdn agih Tudu w3 $ida d
15EN a1 5 en woud laia sie (wmww) 3 wld el
daniovas 100 1oldluTl 2540 andilull 2548 udandiiime
mofly “wiilesnnanudivesmsde Surearinlu "Double
Pool Villas" naz~ssunusnmane Hauazamliulplsusuda
ananssnudemMnereainiitey oldfienlull 2s4s i g
nndeRta ndlumn ynsdudeile 26 sunau 2547 & awa
nssnuludaudegsnsmmioadioaluiviagAalulldandn

The Banyan Tree Phuket hotel is owned by Laguna
Banyan Tree Limited in which Laguna Resorts & Hotels
Public Company Limited has a 100 percent ownership
interest. The 2006 revenue, while higher than 2005, was
below expectations due to the delays in completion of the
new luxury "Double Pool Villas" and construction and
renovation disruption affecting the resort's ability to sell
existing product. The low revenue in 2005 was due to the
Tsunami in the Indian Ocean on 26" December 2004
which had an adverse impact on Phuket's tourism in that
year.
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The Dusit Laguna Resort is directly owned by Laguna
Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited. The resort
achieved the highest occupancy among the Laguna
Phuket resorts in 2006 as it was less affected by
construction disruptions during the year (thirty existing
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hotel rooms were renovated to a new "Dusit Club room"
product during the year). The low revenue in 2005 was
due to the Tsunami in the Indian Ocean on 26" December
2004 which had an adverse impact on Phuket's tourism in
that year.
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The Laguna Beach Resort is owned by Laguna Beach
Club Limited in which Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public
Co., Ltd. has a 50 percent effective ownership interest.
The hotel's revenue, while up on 2005, was below 2004
levels mainly due to the refurbishment of the north wing
(comprising 172 rooms) during the second and third
quarters coupled with a lack of direct flights from key low
season markets such as Hong Kong and Korea. The low
revenue in 2005 was due to the Tsunami in the Indian
Ocean on 26" December 2004 which had an adverse
impact on Phuket's tourism in that year.
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The Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket is owned by
Bangtao Grande Limited in which Laguna Resorts &
Hotels Public Company Limited has a 100 percent
ownership interest. The hotel's revenue, while up on
2005, was below 2004 levels mainly due to the
refurbishment of its rooms throughout the resort during
the year coupled with a lack of direct flights from key low
season markets from the local region. A further 45 rooms
were added to the resort during the year which became
operational from the second quarter onwards. The low
revenue in 2005 was due to the Tsunami in the Indian
Ocean on 26" December 2004 which had an adverse
impact on Phuket's tourism in that year.
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BAHT 000's BAHT oo0's

The Banyan Tree Bangkok is owned by Thai Wah Plaza
Limited in which Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public
Company Limited has had a 100 percent ownership

interest since March 2005. Revenue for 2006 was above
the prior year due to a full year of results being recorded
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(2005: 10-month results recorded, after the acquisition)
despite a lower fourth quarter performance which was
impacted by the closure of several floors due to
construction of a new ballroom, spa facility and
conversion of office floors to hotel suites.
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The Banyan Tree Lijiang hotel is owned by Lijiang Banyan
Tree Hotel Co., Limited in which Laguna Resorts & Hotels
Public Company Limited has a 70 percent effective
ownership interest (Note: effective 1™ January 2007, the
equity interest ratio of Laguna Banyan Tree Limited in
Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd. in which the Company
indirectly held decreased from 70.00 percent to 49.04
percent). The hotel commenced operations in April 2006.
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The Laguna Phuket Golf Club is owned by Laguna
Grande Limited in which Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public
Company Limited has a 100 percent ownership interest.
The increase in revenue in 2006 was due to the higher
occupancies of the Laguna Phuket hotels. The low
revenue in 2005 was due to the Tsunami in the Indian
Ocean on 26" December 2004 which had an adverse
impact on Phuket's tourism in that year.
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EXPLANATION AND ANALYSIS BY MANAGEMENT

The net profit attributable to the shareholders of Baht
1,113 million for the year ended 31" December 2006 was
Baht 1,133 million higher than the prior year. The reason
for the increase in profit was due to the business recovery
from the Tsunami which was severely affected tourism to
Phuket in 2005 coupled with a record performance from
the property sales and holiday club divisions.

This was partially offset by the start-up losses incurred by
Banyan Tree Lijiang hotel which commenced operations
in April 2006 and losses from the office rental operations
in Thai Wah Tower Il in Bangkok due to a number of
leases being terminated for planned conversion to hotel
suites.

Other points O'F note are:

« Interest income increased by Baht 18 million due to
the higher number of holiday club memberships sold
with deferred payment plans.

« Selling and administrative expenses increased by Baht
13 million primarily due to an increase in salary and
wages and legal costs. The increase in legal costs
primarily related to the insurance claim for property
damage and business interruption from the Tsunami
and land related cases.

. Aforeign exchange gain of Baht 88 million which was
due to the appreciation of the Baht vs the US dollar
during 2006.

« An increase of depreciation of Baht 56 million which
was due to the new Banyan Tree Lijiang hotel, a 45
room extension to the Sheraton Laguna Grande Hotel
Phuket and a full year of depreciation of Banyan Tree
Bangkok and Thai Wah Tower | and Thai Wah Tower I
(acquired in March 2005).

+ An increase in interest costs of Baht 64 million which
was due to the loans taken out resulting from the
acquisition of Thai Wah Plaza Limited, loans taken out
to fund the construction of additional room inventory
in Laguna Phuket and the construction of Banyan Tree
Lijiang, and an increase in interest rates during the
year.

. Taxation was Baht 182 million higher than prior year
due to the significant increase in operating profit in
2006.
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+ Net earnings of minority interest in subsidiaries was
higher than the prior year due to the increase in net
income during the year for the respective hotel and
gallery operations.

For the reasons stated above, the company has shown an
increase in net earnings as compared to the same period
last year.

Hotel Operations
(i @ auum) (Unit : Million Baht)
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Hotel revenue was Baht 1,284 million higher than last

year and expenses are Baht 857 million higher than last
year resulting in operating profit being Baht 427 million
higher than last year. The operating margin of 16.0
percent was above the prior year level of 6.4 percent but
below the 2004 level of 307 percent. The main reasons for
this were:

+ An increase in occupancies and average room rates in
the Laguna Phuket hotels leading to increased revenue
as compared to 2005 when the resort experienced very
poor business levels in the aftermath of the Tsunami.
However, fixed operating expenses continued to be
incurred while renovations took place resulting in a
lower operating margin for the Laguna Phuket hotels.

+ Afull year results being recorded for the Banyan Tree
Bangkok which was acquired in March 200s.

+ The start-up losses incurred by Banyan Tree Lijiang
hotel which commenced operations in April 2006.

Property Sales and Holiday Club Operations
(g 1 @uum) (Unit : Million Baht)
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The Property Sales business continues to experience
strong growth as the Phuket property market develops.
Laguna Property Sales sells residential and hotel branded
villas. The Baht 1,359 million higher revenue and Baht 8oo
million higher profit than 2005 mainly comprised the
recognition of:

« 3 partially completed Laguna Village Villas

. 22 completed and 21 partially completed Laguna
Townhomes

. 10 completed and 14 partially completed Laguna
Residences

« 4 completed Banyan Tree Two Bedroom Pool Villas;

and

. 8 completed Banyan Tree Double Pool Villas.

In addition, a further 27 properties were sold during the
year for which no revenue or profit was recognised due to
construction being less than 10 percent and/or the initial
downpayment from buyers being less than 20 percent as
at year end.

Laguna Holiday Club is a professional and successful
operation which sells club memberships where members
purchase a right of use to accommodations owned by the
club. The Baht 219 million higher revenue and Baht 67
million higher profit than 2005 was mainly due to the
strong performance of the existing Phuket and Bangkok
branches coupled with successful opening of an
additional branch in Bintan, Indonesia during the year.
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1. Audit fees

For the fiscal year, the Company and subsidiaries paid
audit fees to an audit firm which amounted to Baht
3,872,500 and subsidiaries paid audit fees to another audit
firm which amounted to Baht 1,697,000. This amount
does not include the audit fees paid by associated com-

panies.
2. Non-audit fees

The Company and subsidiaries did not pay any non-audit
fees for the fiscal year to the audit firm which acted as the
auditor of the Company.
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s
financial statements including the notes to the financial
statements.

In its review of the financial statements, the Board of
Directors has relied upon the reports and work performed
by the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young Office
Limited, and the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee
which has carried out extensive discussions with
management of the Company. The Board has also
satisfied itself that there is no material weaknesses in the
Company'’s internal accounting controls, internal control
system and standard operating procedures.

The Board of Directors is therefore able to conclude that
the financial statements for the year ended 2006 have
been prudently prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles to give a correct and
complete presentation, in all material aspects, the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Ho Kwon Ping
Chairman of the Board
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

To THE BOARD OoF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
LAGUNA REsoRTs & HoTELs PuBLic CoMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Laguna Resorts & Hotels
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31" December 2006, the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the separate financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited for
the same period. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the
Company and its subsidiaries as to their correctness and the completeness of the presentation.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | did
not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, Laguna Beach Club Limited, Laguna (1)
Company Limited and Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Limited, which are included in these
consolidated financial statements. As at 31" December 2006, these subsidiaries had total assets
of Baht 2,145.5 million and total revenues for the year then ended of Baht 441.8 million. In
addition, the separate financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
as at 31" December 2006 included investments in the aforesaid subsidiaries accounted for under
the equity method amounting to Baht 412.4 million, and share of loss of the subsidiaries for the
year then ended of Baht 47.4 million. The financial statements of these subsidiaries were audited
by their auditors whose reports have been furnished to me, and my opinion insofar as it relates
to the amounts included for those subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements and the
Company’s financial statements, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The
consolidated financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries, and the separate financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2005 were audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by another auditor of our firm who, under her report dated 9*
February 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that
my audit and the reports of other auditors as referred to in the first paragraph, provides a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Laguna Resorts
& Hotels Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public
Company Limited as at 31* December 2006 and the results of their operations and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

r
——

Sophon Permsirivallop
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3182

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 27" February 2007
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BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETs

as at 31 December 2006 and 2005

(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable - net

Amounts due from related companies

Inventories - net

Property development cost - net

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Restricted deposits at financial institution

Long—term trade accounts receivable

Investments in subsidiaries accounted

for under the equity method

Other long-term investments

Long-term loans to subsidiaries

Property, p|ant and equipment - net

Land awaiting development

Leasehold rights - net

Goodwill on consolidation

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total Assets

The accompanying notes are an integra| part of the financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETs (CONTINUED)

as at 31 December 2006 and 2005

CONSOLIDATED

2006
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQuUITY

Current Liabilities

Short-term loans
from financial institutions

Trade accounts payable

Current portion of |ong-term loans

Amounts due to related companies

Corporate income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term loans from subsidiaries

Long-term loans from related company

Long-term loans - net of current portion

Other non-current Liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital

Registered
84,670,143 ordinary shares
of Baht 10 each
Issued and fully paid-up

84,670,143 ordinary shares
of Baht 10 each

Share Premium

Other surpluses

Capital reserve

Revaiuation su rpius

Unrealised loss on
available-for-sale securities

Translation adjustment

Retained earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve

Unappropriated

Equity attributable to
Company’s Shareholders

Minority Interest - equity attributable
to minority shareholders of subsidiaries

Total Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit : Baht)

THE COMPANY ONLY

2005 2006 2005
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQuUITY

for the years ended 31+t December 2006 and 2005 for the years ended 31+ December 2006 and 2005
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(Unit : Baht)

Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

(Unit

2006 2005 2006 2005

REVENUES

Revenues from hotel operations

MiINORITY
INTEREST
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE
TO MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Revenues from property
development operations

Revenues from office rental operations

Interest income

Foreign exchange gain

UNAPPROPRIATED

Share of income from investments
accounted for under the equity method

RETAINED EARNINGS

Other income

STATUTORY
RESERVE

APPROPRIATED —

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Direct hotel operations expenses

z e
55
=

b3
Sk
wn un
z>
z 2
a
£ <

Direct cost of property
development operations

Direct cost of office rental operations

CONSOLIDATED

Selling and administrative expenses

UNREALISED

AVAILABLE-FOR-
SALE SECURITIES

Directors’ remuneration

Foreign exchange loss

Total Expenses

Income before interest expenses

REVALUATION
SURPLUS

and corporate income tax

Interest expenses

Corporate income tax

RESERVE

Income (loss) after corporate income tax

Net income attributable to minority interest

Net income (loss) before extraordinary item

PREMIUM

Extraordinary item - provision for impairment
of fixed assets, attributable to

- Share of income from investments
accounted for under the equity method

IssSuUED AND

- Reversal of provision

PAID-UP SHARE
CAPITAL

L
1113
EERE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQuUITY

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005
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LAGUNA REsorTs & HoTELs PuBLic CoMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

(Unit : Baht)
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITES

Net income (loss) for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided by (paid from) operating activities

Net income attributable to minority interest

Interest expenses

Corporate income tax

Income before interest expenses
and corporate income tax

Adjustments for:

Extraordinary item - (reversal of)
allowance for impairment of fixed assets

Depreciation

Amortisation of leasehold rights

Amortisation of (negative goodwill) /
goodwill on consolidation

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for stock obsolescences

Share of income from investments
accounted for under the equity method

(Gain) Loss on the dissolution of a subsidiary

Gain on the 15% of divestment
of a subsidiary

Allowance for impairment in value
of other long-term investment

Unrealised foreign exchange loss (gain)

Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment

Write off property, plant and equipment

Reversal of allowance
for impairment of fixed assets

Gain on sales of leasehold rights

Gain on property sales recognition

Decrease (increase) in operating assets

Trade accounts receivable

Amounts due from related companies

Inventories

Property development cost

Other current assets

Long-term trade accounts receivable

Other non-current assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OoF CAsH FLows (CoONTINUED) NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005 for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

(Unit : Baht) 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDAS. THE COMPANYICIES Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited (“The Company”) is a public company incorporated and

2006 2005 2006 2005 domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholder is Banyan Tree Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in Singapore.

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade accounts payable

Amounts due to related companies
Other current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from operating activities before
interest and income tax paid

Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in restricted deposits
at financial institutions

2. BAsis oF PREPARATION

Increase of long-term loans to subsidiaries

Purchase of other long-term investments

Purchase of investment in subsidiaries

Cash received from the dissolution
of a subsidiary

Cash received from the 15 percent
of divestment of a subsidiary

accounting policies.

3. BAsis oF CONSOLIDATION
Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries,
net of cash acquired

Dividend received from subsidiaries

follows:

Proceeds from sales of leasehold rights

Acquisition of property, p|ant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of property,
plant and equipment

Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

rental, property development and sale of holiday club memberships.

issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN)

TWR-Ho|dings Limited

FINANCING ACTIVITIES Laguna Holiday Club Limited

Dividend payment of the Company Cheer Golden Limited

and a subsidiary Laguna Grande Limited

Increase (decrease) in short-term loans

from financial institutions

Laguna (3) Limited

Repayment of long-term loans from other

company of a newly acquired subsidiary Wenco-Thai Limited

—

Decrease of long-term loans from subsidiaries Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited

Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Increase (decrease) of long-term loans from

related companies Subsidiaries held through TWR-Holdings Limited

Draw down of long-term loans Pai Samart Development Company Limited

Repayment of long-term loans Mae Chan Property Company Limited

Cash received from minority shareholder for Phuket Resort Development Limited

share capital increase of subsidiaries

Twin Waters Development Company Limited

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities PT AVC Indonesia

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Laguna Banyan Tree Limited

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information

® Hold land plots for future development.

Cash paid during the year for

® Own the land on which the 4 hotels are situated.

Interest expense

Capitalised interest “ Liquidated companies.

TR V. /]
b b L i
il il
bl i il L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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® Own the land on which Banyan Tree Bangkok is situated.

The Company and its subsidiaries is principally engaged in the hotel business and property development. There
are four hotels in Laguna Phuket, namely Dusit Laguna Resort, Laguna Beach Resort, Sheraton Grande Laguna
Phuket and Banyan Tree Phuket, located in Phuket province, one hotel, the Banyan Tree Bangkok, located in
Bangkok and a new hotel, Banyan Tree Lijiang, located in Yunnan Province in China. The subsidiaries also engage
in operating a golf club (Laguna Phuket Golf Club), sales of merchandise (Banyan Tree Gallery), office and resort

The Company’s and some of its subsidiaries’ registered address is 21/12A, 21/13, 21/65B, 21/66B, 21/67 Thai Wah
Tower I, 6th, 22nd, 23rd Floor, South Sathorn Road, Tungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the
Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547. The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance
with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14" September 2001,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the

3.1 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as

PERCENTAGE OF
SHAREHOLDING

COUNTRY OF

NATURE OF BUSINESS

INCORPORATION

2006 | 2005
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (continued):

PERCENTAGE OF

COUNTRY OF | ¢\ REHOLDING

NATURE OF BUSINESS
INCORPORATION

2006 2005

Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Company Limited
Laguna Beach Club Limited
Laguna (1) Limited

Talang Development Company Limited
Thai Wah Plaza Limited

Thai Wah Tower Company Limited

Thai Wah Tower (2) Company Limited

Laguna Excursions Limited

Subsidiaries held through Laguna Grande Limited
Bangtao (1) Limited
Bangtao (2) Limited
Bangtao (3) Limited
Bangtao (4) Limited
Bangtao Development Limited
Bangtao Grande Limited

Laguna Central Limited

Subsidiaries held through the Company and three subsidiaries

Laguna Service Company Limited

® Hold land plots for future development.

® Own the land on which the 4 hotels are situated.

8 Own the land on which Banyan Tree Bangkok is situated.
@ Liquidated companies.

The Company has a 60 percent shareholding in Laguna Beach Club Limited. However, the Company has
recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at 50 percent in accordance with the income sharing
percentage in the Articles of Association.

The Company has a 49 percent shareholding in Laguna Excursions Limited. However, the Company has recognised
its share of the income of this subsidiary at 100 percent in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the
Articles of Association.

The percentage of the total assets and total revenues of the major subsidiaries in relation to the total assets and
total revenues as included in the consolidated financial statements as at 31" December 2006 are as follows: -

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL ASSETS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL REVENUES
SUBSIDIARIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS INCOME STATEMENTS

Laguna C
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited 0l
Bangtao Grande Limited NN
Laguna Beach Club Limited "

Bangtao
Thai Wa
Laguna

B ]
(*excluding the investment accounted for under the equity method in Bangtao Grande Limited)
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

3.2 The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Thai Baht at the closing
exchange rate as to assets and liabilities, and at monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and expenses.
The resultant differences have been shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’

equity.

3.3 Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

3.4 Investments in the subsidiary companies as recorded in the Company's books of account are eliminated
against the equity of the subsidiary companies. The resultant differences are amortised over a period of 20
years commencing as from the date of acquisition of the investment.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

4.1 In October 2006, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Notification No. 25/2006 allowing entities
which carry their property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts the choice for depreciation to be charged
to the income statements based on the historical costs of the assets or on the revalued amounts. The previous
notification issued required depreciation on revalued amounts be charged to the income statement from 1*
January 2007. The Company has decided for the current reporting period to continue with its practice of
charging depreciation on the historical cost of assets through the income statement and the depreciation on
revalued amounts to equity via the revaluation reserve. However, had the depreciation charge been calculated
based on the revalued amounts, net income and earnings per share would have been changed to the
following:

(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Net income (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share

4.2 In October 2006, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Notification No. 26/2006 regarding
Accounting Standard No. 44 “Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Investments in
Subsidiaries” (Amendment No. 1), under which investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates are to be presented in the separate financial statements under the cost method rather than the
equity method. Entities which are not ready to adopt the cost method in 2006 can continue to use the
equity method through the end of 2006 and adopt the cost method as from 1™ January 2007.

In this regard, the Company has elected to adopt the change in 2007. Adoption of the change in 2007 will
necessitate the restatement of the Company’s 2006 separate financial statements to be presented for
comparative purposes along with the financial statements for 2007. The restatement will have the effect of
increasing net income in the separate income statement for 2006 by approximately Baht 241.6 million
(Baht 2.85 per share) and decreasing net worth in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006 by approximately
Baht 3,872.0 million.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Revenue recognition
(a) Revenue from hotel operations

- Revenue from hotel operations mainly comprises room sales, food and beverage sales and revenues
from auxiliary activities, and represents the invoiced value (excluding value added tax) of goods supplied
and services rendered after deducting discounts and service charges.
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

5.2

53

54

- Revenue from sales of merchandise (Gallery operation) represents the invoiced value (excluding value

added tax) of goods supplied after deducting discounts.
(b) Revenue from property development operations
- Revenue from the sale of land and houses

Revenues from the sale of land and houses are recognised when a legally binding contract is signed and
by applying the percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion is arrived at based on
actual costs incurred as compared to the total anticipated construction costs, excluding cost of land, and
based upon estimations performed by qualified engineers. Revenue is recognised when the initial
payment and installments received are at least twenty percent of the contract price and the construction
work is at least ten percent completed.

Where properties are sold to non-Thais, the land is sold under a long-term lease agreement comprising
an initial term of thirty years with an option to extend for two successive periods of thirty years each,
without any additional consideration to be paid in addition to the sum of the rental paid for the initial
lease term. These long-term lease agreements also contain a further option that provides if Thai law
permits non-Thais to own land on a freehold basis, the lessor shall consent to sell the land to the lessee
in return for a token payment. Consequently, long-term leases are recognised as sales of land for
accounting purposes in accordance with the principle of applying substance over form.

Revenues from the sale of land are recognised when the ownership has been transferred to buyers or all
payments are received from the buyers.

- Revenue from sales of furniture
Revenue from sales of furniture are recognised when furniture is completely installed.
- Revenue from sale of holiday club memberships

Revenue from the sale of holiday club memberships is recognised when a legally binding contract has
been signed and at least twenty-five percent of the contract price has been received.

(c) Revenues from rental and services

Rental income is recognised over the lease period. Service revenue is recognised when services have been
rendered taking into account the stage of completion.

(d) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as interest accrues based on the effective rate method.

Cost of land and houses sold

In determining the cost of land and houses sold, the anticipated total development cost (after recognising the
cost incurred to date) are attributed to units already sold and then recognised as cost in the income statements
according to the percentage of completion basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at bank, and all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided
for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on
collection experience and analysis of debtor aging.
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5.6

57

58

59

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31+t December 2006 and 2005

Property development cost

Property development cost is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises cost of land,
design fee, infrastructure, construction and related interest.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being determined on either the first-

in, first-out or the weighted average basis.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value is set up for old, obsolete, slow-moving or deteriorated
inventories.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries (in the financial statements of the Company) and associated companies are
accounted for under the equity method. Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost. For
each subsequent year the investment is adjusted to incorporate the Company’s proportionate share of the
operating results of the subsidiaries and associated companies. Losses over the cost of investment are
presented as a liability under the caption of “Allowance for loss on investments in subsidiaries and associated
companies accounted for under the equity method”.

Other |ong-term investments

Long-term investments in marketable equity securities which the Company and subsidiaries intend to hold as
available-for-sale are determined at fair value (The fair value is based on the latest bid price of the last
working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand) and recognise changes in the value of
investments as a separate item in shareholders’ equity under the caption of “Unrealised gain/loss on available-
for-sale securities” until the investments are sold, when the changes are then included in determining income.

Long-term investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company and subsidiaries classified as
other investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

For long-term investments in both marketable and non-marketable equity or debt securities, a test for
impairment is carried out when there is a factor indicating that such investments might be impaired. Loss on
impairment (if any) is recognised in the income statements.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
charged or credited to the income statements.

When disposing of part of a particular investment in debt or equity securities, the carrying amount of the
disposed part is determined as the weighted average carrying amount of the total holding of the investment.

Property, plant and equipment
(a) Hotel properties

Hotel properties which consist of land, buildings, fixtures and equipment of buildings are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any). The Company and
subsidiaries initially record land, buildings, fixtures and equipment of buildings at cost at the acquisition
date, and subsequently revalued by an independent professional appraiser to their fair values. As a policy,
the revaluation will be performed every three years. If within that period, there are factors which may cause
significant changes in the value of assets, the revaluation will be performed in that year.

(b) Other fixed assets/land awaiting development

Fixed assets other than hotel properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for
loss on impairment of assets (if any), except for land and land awaiting development which is stated at
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NoTEs ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

revaluation made by an independent professional appraiser. As a policy, land revaluation by an independent
professional appraiser will be made every three years. If within that period, there are factors which may
cause significant changes in the value of assets, the revaluation will be performed in that year.

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of the revaluation of the Company and
subsidiaries’ assets, the increase is credited directly to equity under the heading of “Revaluation surplus”.
The Company’s proportional interest in the surplus from revaluation of the fixed assets of the
subsidiaries (based on the Company’s equity holding in the subsidiaries) is also presented under the
caption of “Revaluation surplus” in shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet. However, a revaluation
increase will be recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised as an expense.

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of the revaluation of the Company and
subsidiaries’ assets, the decrease is recognised as an expense in the income statement. However, a
revaluation decrease is to be charged directly against the related “Revaluation surplus” to the extent that
the decrease does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus in respect of those same assets.
Any excess amount is to be recognised as an expense in the income statement.

5.10 Depreciation

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs or the revalued amounts on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10 -50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-15 years
Operating and office equipment 3-10 years
Golf course 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The depreciation is dealt with in the financial statements as follows:
- Depreciation attributed to the original cost portion is included in determining income.
- Depreciation attributed to the surplus portion is deducted against revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity.
The revaluation surplus can neither be offset against deficit nor used for dividend payment.
No depreciation has been provided for land and construction in process.
5.11 Leasehold rights and amortisation

Leasehold rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (if any).
Amortisation of leasehold rights is calculated by reference to their cost on a straight-line basis over the
following leasehold periods:

Land 40 years
Hotel units 20 years

The leasehold period is in line with the underlying lease of the respective assets.
The amortisation is included in determining income.
5.12 Goodwill and negative goodwill

Goodwill is generated as a result of investments in subsidiaries being made at a cost higher than the fair value
of identifiable net assets of subsidiaries.
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Negative goodwill is generated as a result of investments in subsidiaries being made at a cost lower than the
fair value of identifiable net assets of subsidiaries.

Goodwill and negative goodwill are stated at cost less amortization and allowance for loss on impairment (if
any). Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over 20 years for hotel operation acquisitions, and over
3 years for other business acquisitions.

5.13 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether
directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in
the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors
and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

5.14 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction dates.
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the balance sheet date are translated
into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet date.

Exchange gains and losses are included in determining income.
5.15 Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Where the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

5.16 Employee benefits

Salary, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

5.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

5.18 Income Tax

Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with tax
legislation.

5.19 Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of
exchange ruling on the balance sheet. Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining

income.
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5.20 Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances, aFFecting amounts reported in
these financial statements and related notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations

Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations, net

Trade accounts receivab|e - sa|es O'F property

- Installments due

- Unbilled receivable (not yet due)

Current portion of |ong-term trade
accounts receivable (Note 11)

Total

Less : Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable -sales of property, net

Trade accounts receivable, net

The outstanding balance of trade accounts receivable - hotel operations are aged, based on due date, as follows:-
(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
2006 2005 2006 2005

Age of receivables

Not yet due
Past due

Less than 30 days

31 - 60 days

61 - 9o days

91 - 120 days

More than 120 days
Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations, net
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Additional information on trade accounts receivable - sales of property are as follows:- ( "
Unit : Baht

CONSOLIDATED

Total value of contracts signed

Installments due

Less : Collections

Accounts receivable - installments due

Revenues recognised

Less : Installments due
Long-term trade accounts receivable -

installment receivable (Note 11)

Unbilled receivable (not yet due)

Unbilled receivable (not yet due) represents payments which have not yet been received from customers, but which
are recognised as income under the percentage of completion method.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties, which
have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of businesses between
the Company and those companies. Below is a summary of those transactions. Significant transactions are
disclosed separately and non-significant transactions have been grouped.

Transactions between the group (the Company and its subsidiaries) and related companies
(Unit : Million Baht)

PAYEE 2005 TRANSFER PRICING POLICY

Reimbursement of costs
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Inter resort charges

Credit card commission

Commission on spa guests

Commission on consignment
sales

Resort service charges

Management fees

Rent and service

Purchase of goods

Purchase of Gallery Vouchers

Purchase of Spa Vouchers

Purchase of fixed asset

Purchase of office space

Purchase of hotel units
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(Unit : Million Baht)

2005 TRANSFER PRICING POLICY

Termination of leasehold rights

of hotel units

Sale of hotel units

Rental return on hotel units

Spa service

Interest

Transactions between subsidiaries (eliminated from consolidated financial statements)
(Unit : Million Baht)

PAYEE PAYER 2006 2005 TRANSFER PRICING POLICY

Interest

Reimbursement of costs
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(Unit : Million Baht) (Unit : Million Baht)

2005 TRANSFER PRICING POLICY

2005 TRANSFER PRICING POLICY

Reimbursement of costs Rent and service (10

(10
(20
(20
(10
(20
(20
(10
(10

(20

Inter resort charges (10
(20
(20
(10

(20

(20

(10

Guarantee fee (15)

Purchase of goods

Credit card commission

Resort service charges

Purchase of investment

Purchase of land

Management fees
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Purchase of Ga||ery Vouchers

Purchase of water

Purchase of books

Dividend income

LRH
Subsidiaries

AVCI
BGL
BT3
BT4
BTD
BTG(S)
BTG(T)
CGL
LBC
LBTH
LBTL
LGL
LHC
LSC

L1

L3
MCP
PKRD
PSD
TWDC
TWPL
TWRH
TWT
TWT2
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Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited

PT. AVC Indonesia

Bangtao Grande Limited

Bangtao (3) Limited

Bangtao (4) Limited

Bangtao Development Limited

Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Private Limited
Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited
Cheer Golden Limited

Laguna Beach Club Limited

Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Company Limited
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited

Laguna Grande Limited

Laguna Holiday Club Limited

Laguna Service Company Limited

Laguna (1) Limited

Laguna (3) Limited

Mae Chan Property Company Limited
Phuket Resort Development Limited

Pai Samart Development Company Limited
Twin Waters Development Company Limited
Thai Wah Plaza Limited

TWR - Holdings Limited

Thai Wah Tower Company Limited

Thai Wah Tower (2) Company Limited

LAGUNA REsorTs & HoTELs PuBLic CoMPANY LIMITED

(Unit : Million Baht)

PAYER 2006 2005 TRANSFER PRICING POLICY

(13) agr
(13) agr
(13) agr

(o) sgrecd bass

At cost

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

Related companies (related by way of common shareholders, directors and/or management)

BTHL Banyan Tree Holdings Limited

BTHR : Banyan Tree Hotels and Resorts Private Limited

BTR : Banyan Tree Resorts Limited

BTRS Banyan Tree Resorts (Seychelles) Limited

BTPPL : Banyan Tree Properties Private Limited

BTRS(T) : Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas (Thailand) Company Limited
BTS : Banyan Tree Spas Private Limited

HSD Heritage Spa Dubai Limited Liability Company

HSE Heritage Spas Egypt Limited Liability Company

JRR Jiwa Renga Resorts Limited

KRL Kingley Realty Limited

MA Maldives Angsana Private Limited

PTBH PT. Bintan Hotels

TDC Tapioca Development Corporation Limited

TWC : Thai Wah Public Company Limited

TWFP : Thai Wah Food Products Public Company Limited
VM : Vabbinvest Maldives Private Limited

WYLH : Wah Yue Leisure Health (Shanghai) Company Limited

The nature, pricing and agreements relating to the above transactions are summarised as follows:

()

Loans to subsidiaries and between group companies are unsecured and are denominated in Thai Baht,
except for loans to LBTH which are denominated in US dollars as in (16) below. The Baht loans carry interest
at a rate equal to the lenders’ borrowing costs per annum (based upon commercial bank’s interest rates) plus
a margin of 1.1 percent. Prior to 1 July 2005 loans made by the Laguna Holiday Club Limited to other
subsidiaries, were charged at interest rate of 6 percent per annum. The loans are repayable on demand,
however it is expected that those loans would not be called for repayment in the short-term. Therefore such
loans are recorded as non-current assets/liabilities in the balance sheet.

Costs are often incurred in one company within the group which is reimbursed by the company to which
the expense relates. Actual costs are reimbursed with no handling costs applied.

These charges relate to goods and services that are consumed by customers in one part of Laguna Phuket
but are billed centrally to the customer at the hotel at which the customer is staying. Such charges relate to
meals at restaurants, golf fees, treatments at Spa’s and goods purchased at shops in the resort. On receiving
the funds centrally from the customer, the hotel reimburses the company in which the goods and services
are consumed. Actual receipts are paid and handling charges are not charged with the exception of credit
card commission which is disclosed separately in (4) below. Such inter resort charges are also incurred at the
Banyan Tree Bangkok primarily for treatments of spa and goods purchased in the shops.

As noted in (3) above these commissions relate to instances where monies are received in a different company
in which the revenue was earned. As credit card commissions are deducted from the gross receipts of
customers, this transaction passes on the cost to the company in which the revenue is recognised. The rates
charged range from 2 percent to 4 percent of the revenue and are based on the actual commissions charged

by the credit card companies.

These charges relate to commissions earned by LBC for its guests that it provides to the closely located Spa.
This commission is paid by the Spa to incentivise LBC to market the Spa’s facilities to its guests. The rates
charged range from 5 percent to 10 percent of spa revenue based on the number of guests that LBC provides
to the Spa each month.
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6)

Resort service charges to the hotel operations relate to revenue of Laguna Service Company Limited which
provides centralised services to each operation in the group located at Laguna Phuket at the following rates:

- Utility charge at the determined price and actual usage

- Laundry charge at the price based on cost plus a certain margin
- Common area services, transportation
charges,computer training centre

and staff buses

- Marketing fee

based on actual cost

at the rate of 1 percent of the hotel operations’
budgeted revenue (2005: 1 percent of the hotel
operations’ prior year revenue)

The employees of LRH provide architectural services and manage projects that are undertaken during the
year. The contracted fee for project management is set at a rate of 5 percent of the actual or budgeted costs
of the project and the contracted fee for architectural services at a rate of 6.5 percent of construction for the
first Baht 10 million, 5.5 percent of construction cost between Baht 10 million and 30 million, 4.75 percent of
construction cost between Baht 30 million and 50 million, 4.5 percent of construction cost between Baht 50
million and 100 million, 4.25 percent of construction cost between Baht 100 million and 200 million, 3.75
percent of construction cost between Baht 200 million and 500 million and 3.4 percent of construction cost
above Baht 500 million.

The terms of the operating agreements are disclosed in note 27. The payments terms of the contracts are as
follows:

(i) The management contract of the Banyan Tree Phuket pays a basic management fee of 2 percent of total
revenue and an incentive fee of 7.5 percent of gross operating profit.

(i) This relates to a Technical Assistance Agreement to conduct the golf business. The terms of the agreement
set a basic management fee of 3 percent of total revenue and an incentive fee of 10 percent of gross
operating profit.

(iii) The management contract of the Banyan Tree Bangkok and Banyan Tree Lijiang pay a basic management
fee of 3 percent of total revenue, an incentive fee of 10 percent of gross operating profit.

(iv) Pursuant to the management contract, expenses relating to the sharing of promotional campaigns and
adverts, sales staff salaries, central reservations and international sales offices incurred by the Banyan
Tree corporate head office shall be charged as follows:

- Group marketing services shared on a group basis are based on 3 percent of the budgeted revenues
of the hotels.

- Reservation Service fees are 1 percent of room revenue plus USD 10 per reservation transaction.

All management fees are consistent with industry practice and the sharing of group marketing costs
incurred by LBTL, LBTH and TWPL are the reimbursement of costs benefiting each of the hotels. As a result
these transactions are on normal commercial terms and conditions.

These transactions relate to:

(i) Sale of goods from BTG(T) to other subsidiaries and related companies are priced at a 15 percent to 45
percent discount to the retail price.

(i) Sale of goods from BTG(T) to BTG(S) is priced at cost plus a handling fee of 5 percent. In this instance
BTG(T) acts as a purchasing agent on behalf of BTG(S) in order to centralise the purchasing function.
This arrangement also applies for the sale of goods from BTG(S) to BTG(T).
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(iii) Sale of guest supplies for the hotels from BTG(S) and BTG(T) to other related companies is priced at
cost plus certain margin.

These transactions relate to rent paid for premises and land and are on the following basis:

(i)  Rental of hotel premises and service income is on the basis of 5 percent to 8.5 percent of sales revenue
which is dependent on criteria such as the location, budgeted sales, term of the lease, size of area leased
and type of operation.

(ii) Rental or rental and service income of office space with monthly rent varying from Baht 350 to Baht 556
per square metre which is dependent on criteria such as the location, term of the lease, and size of area
leased.

(iii) Rental of space and service in Canal Village for LHC and the property sales office. The rates charged
range from Baht 332 to Baht 498 per square metre per month.

(iv) Rental of central storage was charged at Baht 300 per square metre per month.

(v) Rental of land and lagoon on which hotel operations and Canal Village are located are at Baht 85,000
and 8,500 per rai per annum respectively, starting from January 2005 increasing by 5 percent per annum.

vi) Rental of land on which Laguna Phuket Golf Club is located at Baht 8,500 per rai per annum.
vii) Rental of office building units is on the basis of Baht 5 million per annum.

(

(

(viii) Rental on hotel premises is on the basis of Baht 937 per square metre per month.

(ix) Rental and service fee for the fitness center located at the Banyan Tree Spa Bangkok is at the rate of
Baht 348 per square metre per month.

(x) Rental of land on which hotel premises are located is on the basis of Baht 2.6 million per annum.

(xi) Rental and service fee for Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) is at the rate of S$ 2.94 per square feet per
month.

(xii) The air conditioning rental fee related to the use of LSC’s marquee which is on the basis of Baht 7,600
per bay and Baht 2,000 per hour.

This relates to a Management Agreement to manage the hotel units of CGL in the Angsana Resort & Spa
on Bintan Island, Indonesia under which CGL receives a return of 15 percent per annum on the investment

of the leasehold rights.

LSC purchases water from LGL, the Company that owns the lagoons from which the water is sourced, at a
rate of Baht 2 per cubic metre.

Purchase of Banyan Tree Spa and Banyan Tree Gallery vouchers for distribution to management to provide
an additional benefit scheme. The vouchers will be issued yearly to qualifying executives and will be valid
only within the year of issue.

The sale and purchase of land in Chiangmai and Phuket was made among 100 percent owned subsidiaries
and was set at a level based on the official Land Department valuation.

Guarantee fee among group companies for permitting their assets to be pledged as collateral for other
related companies’ bank loans by charging on 1 percent of proportion of value of pledged assets to total loan
facilities (2005: 1 percent of the net book value of pledged assets).

Loans have been provided to LBTH to fund the construction of the Banyan Tree Lijiang which are
denominated in US dollars. The loans are long-term loans which carry interest at rates of 6 percent and 7.25
percent per annum and are repayable within 24 months and 8 years after the first drawdown respectively.
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(17)  This relates to the purchase of Spa vouchers by LHC from BTRS(T) which are priced at a 40 percent discount
to the Spa price list.

(18)  Sale of goods from BTG(S) to other related companies which are entitled to a monthly commission of 5
percent of the monthly aggregate of all revenues and income derived directly from the sale of goods
consigned by BTG(S) to be sold at the outlets.

(19) These transactions relate to the restructuring of ownership of units held by the group in the Angsana Resort
& Spa Bintan, Indonesia. The units were originally purchased by CGL and LHC. However, due to the
commencement of Laguna Holiday Club’s Bintan operations during the year, the ownership of the units
were transferred to AVCl who is performing the local operations. The price was based on market price.

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of letters of guarantee issued to banks to guarantee facilities of
its subsidiaries as follows:

(Unit : Million Baht)

31" DECEMBER 2006 31" DECEMBER 2005

Long-term loan facilities

Short-term loan facilities
Clean bill facilities

Overdrafts and bank guarantee facilities

Forward exchange contract

Subsidiaries have contingent liabilities in respect of letters of guarantee issued to banks to guarantee facilities of

the Company and other subsidiaries as follows:- (Unit - Million Baht

31" DECEMBER 2006 31" DECEMBER 2005

Long-term loan facilities

Short-term loan facilities

Overdrafts and bank guarantee facilities

Forward exchange contract

The significant outstanding balances owing from/to its related companies have been separately shown in the
balance sheets as follows:-

Amounts due from related companies (Unit : Baht)
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
2006 2005 2006 2005

Subsidiaries

Laguna Grande Limited

Laguna Service Company Limited

Bangtao Grande Limited

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited

Laguna Beach Club Limited

Laguna Holiday Club Limited
TWR-Holdings Limited

Thai Wah Tower (2) Company Limited
Others
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(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Related companies

Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas
(Thailand) Company Limited

Banyan Tree Spas Japan
Banyan Tree Hotels and Resorts Pte Ltd.

Banyan Tree (Private) Limited
(Sri Lanka)

Banyan Tree Spa Singapore Pte Ltd.
Banyan Tree Holdings Pte Ltd.
Vabbinvest Maldives Pvt Ltd.

Banyan Tree Resorts (Seychelles) Ltd.
Maldives Angsana Pvt Ltd.

PT Bintan Hotels - Angsana Bintan

PT Bintan Hotels — Banyan Tree Bintan

Jiwa Renga Resorts Limited

Heritage Spas Dubai LLC

Banyan Tree Resorts Limited

Banyan Tree Resorts (Australia) Pty Ltd.
Others

Total

Long-term loans to subsidiaries

The movements in long-term loans to subsidiaries during the year are as follows:-
(Unit : Baht)

THE COMPANY ONLY
31" DECEMBER 2005 ADDITION REPAYMENT 31" DECEMBER 2006

Laguna (3) Limited

Laguna Service Company Limited
TWR-Holdings Limited
Total
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Amounts due to related companies (Unit : Baht)

THE COMPANY ONLY

CONSOLIDATED

2006 2005 2006 2005

Subsidiaries

Laguna Service Company Limited

Laguna Grande Limited
Bangtao Grande Limited
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited
Thai Wah Plaza Limited
TWR-Holding Limited
Laguna Holiday Club Limited
Others

Related companies

Banyan Tree Spa Company Limited
Banyan Tree Resorts & Spa

(Thailand) Company Limited
Banyan Tree Properties Pte Ltd*
Banyan Tree Hotels and Resorts Pte Ltd.
Angsana City Club Taichung
Banyan Tree Ho|dings Pte Ltd.
PT Bintan Hotels - Angsana Bintan

Jiwa Renga Resorts Limited

Banyan Tree Spa Shanghai
Thai Wah Food Products Plc.
Others

Total

(*Previously named “Wah Chang Holdings Ltd.")

ong-term loans from subsidiaries
Long-term loans from subsid

The movements in the long-term loans from subsidiaries during the year are as follows:- (Unit: Baht)
nit : Bant

THE COMPANY ONLY

31" DECEMBER 2005 ADDITION REPAYMENT 31" DECEMBER 2006

Laguna Grande Limited
Laguna Holiday Club Limited
Wenco-Thai Limited

Toal soorsocoalll 130000000 (assococodlll  ssérsocoa

Long-term loans from related company

The movements in the long-term loans from related company during the year are as follows:- (Unit: Baht)
nit : Bant

Related company CONSOLIDATED

EXCHANGE RATE
1 DECEMBER 200 ADDITION ADJUSTMENT 1" DECEMBER 2006
3 5 3

Banyan Tree Holdings Pte Ltd.

B B BT Rt |
(96695820 634013280 162809200 18723830
96695820l 63402328 Bl 353552000
Jll BN En e

10.

11.
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Directors and management's remuneration

In 2006 the Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors
amounting to Baht 5.49 million and management amounting to Baht 146.21 million totaling Baht 1517 million (The
Company only: Baht 88.7 million) (2005: Baht 102.4 million, The Company only: Baht 51.45 million).

INVENTORIES (Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Food and beverage

Finished goods and supplies

Less: Allowance for stock obsolescence

Inventories - net

PrROPERTY DEVELOPMENT CoST

(Unit : Baht)
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Property for sale under holiday club
memberships

Completed buildings
Land

Property under construction 4

84831775 | 309936705 M 20630622 M -
Less: Allowance for diminution in market value
of property under construction (
593414226 0 218510,056 M 29639622 W -

Property development cost - net

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Value added tax
Prepaid expenses and withholding tax

Advance to suppliers and staff

Loan to subsidiaries shareholders

Forward exchange contract

Interest receivable
Others

Tl T T T RS

B B B B
LoNG-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Long-term trade accounts receivable consists of:

1.1 Secured financing provided to customers of property sales which are mainly denominated in United States
Dollars and bear interest at a rate of 5 percent per annum over the Singapore Inter Bank Offered Rate
(SIBOR). The loan periods vary from 5 to 15 years.
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1.2 Installments receivable from property sales which bear interest at a rate of g percent and 12 percent per
annum and installments are repaid over a period of 3 to 5 years.

Long-term trade accounts receivable are repayable as follows:
(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED - 2006

LOAN INSTALLMENT
RECEIVABLE RECEIVABLE

Within one year (Note 6)

Between 2 - 4 years

Between 5 years and after

Long-term trade accounts receivable

Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel
Company Limited

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PAiD-up CARRYING AMOUNTS

DivibenD
SHARE CAPITAL Cost BASED ON THE EQUITY METHOD

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

MiLLioN | MiLLION | MiLLION | MiLLION BAHT BAHT MiLLioN | MiLLION
BAHT BAHT BAHT BAHT BAHT BAHT

Twin Waters Development
Company Limited

Thai Wah Plaza Limited

Thai Wah Tower Company Limited

Thai Wah Tower (2 ) Company Limited

Laguna Excursions Limited

Total (Note 6) Laguna Grande Limited

Subsidiaries held through

(Unit : Baht) Laguna Grande Limited
CONSOLIDATED - 2005 Bangtao (1) Limited
LOAN INSTALLMENT Bangtao (2) Limited
RECEIVABLE RECEIVABLE Bangtao (3) Limited

Within one year (Note 6) Bangtao (4) Limited

Bangtao Development Limited

Between 2 - 4 years Laguna Central Limited
Bangtao Grande Limited

Other subsidiaries

II

Between 5 years and after

Long-term trade accounts receivable

Laguna Service Company Limited*

Total (Note 6) Banyan Tree Gallery

(Thailand) Limited
Wenco - Thai Limited **
Laguna Ho|iday Club Limited

Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore)
THE CoMPANY ONLY Pte Ltd.

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE EQUITY METHOD

PAiD-upP CARRYING AMOUNTS

DivibeEnD
SHARE CAPITAL Cost BASED ON THE EQUITY METHOD

Laguna (3) Limited
Cheer Golden Limited

Total investments in subsidiaries

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

MiLLiION | MiLLION | MiLLION | MiLLION MiLLioN | MiLLION
BAHT BAHT
BAHT BAHT BAHT BAHT BAHT BAHT

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited is held 49 percent by the Company and 51 percent through TWR-Holdings Limited)
Laguna Beach Club Limited is held 10 percent by the Company and 50 percent through TWR-Holdings Limited)

03

TWR - Ho|dings Limited

Subsidiaries held through
TWR - Ho|dings Limited

Pai Samart Development
Company Limited

Mae Chan Property
Company Limited

H#

i

HE

o~~~

Wenco-Thai Limited is held 51 percent by the Company and 49 percent through TWR-Holdings Limited)
*  Laguna Service Company Limited is held by the Company and 3 subsidiaries)

—

The Company has a 6o percent shareholding in Laguna Beach Club Limited. However, the Company has recognised
its share of the income of this subsidiary at 50 percent in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the

Phuket Resort Development Limited Articles of Association.

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited
Laguna Beach Club Limited #3

The Company has a 49 percent shareholding in Laguna Excursions Limited. However, the Company has recognised

— its share of the income of this subsidiary at 100 percent in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the
Laguna (1) Limited

PT AVC Indonesia

Articles of Association.

On 5" January 2006, Laguna Banyan Tree Limited, a subsidiary, injected additional paid up share capital to Lijiang

Talang Development

Banyan Tree Hotel Company Limited amounting to US dollars 2.8 million, which was in proportion to its 70
Company Limited

percent interest in that company.
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

A resolution of the extraordinary meeting of the shareholders of Wenco-Thai Limited was held on 14" September
2006 which authorised its dissolution, and registered its dissolution with the Ministry of Commerce on 11"
October 2006.

As at 31" December 2006 and 2005, the 2,450,000 ordinary shares of Laguna Banyan Tree Limited have been
pledged with a bank to secure a long-term loan of the Company.

As at 31" December 2006 and 2005, the 10,188,203 ordinary shares of Thai Wah Plaza Limited have been pledged
with a bank to secure a long-term loan of the Company.

Changes in Goodwill (Negative goodwill) on consolidation balances during the year can be summarised as follows:

(Unit : Baht)

GoODWILL NEGATIVE GOODWILL

Cost:

As at 31 December 2005

As at 31 December 2006

Accumulated amortisation:

As at 31 December 2004

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2005

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2006

Net book value:

As at 31 December 2005

As at 31 December 2006

Amortisation of goodwill is included in “selling and administrative expenses” in the income statements.
Amortisation of negative goodwill is included in “other income” in the income statements.

3. INVESTMENT IN AssocCIATED COMPANY

(Unit : Baht)
CONSOLIDATED

PAiD-upP PERCENTAGE CARRYING AMOUNTS BASED ON
SHARE CAPITAL OF HOLDING THE EQUITY METHOD

2006 2005 2006 2005

2006 200
MiLLioN MiLLiON 5

L7
BAHT BAHT e %

Ownrep Project
Services Pte Ltd.

Ownrep Project Services Pte Ltd. was incorporated in Singapore and engages in project consu|ting service. It has
now temporarily ceased its operations.
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for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

14. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006

Investment in available-for-sale securities
Thai Wah Plc.
Addition

Unrealised loss on investment

Investment, at market price

Investments in other companies

TRL Investment Limited

Tropical Resorts Limited

Total investments in other companies
Total

2005 2006 2005
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005 for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

As at 31" December 2006, certain buildings and equipment of the Company and its subsidiaries have been fully 17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Unit : Baht)

depreciated but still in use. The original cost, before deducting accumulated depreciation, of those assets amounted p———— EP———

to Baht 1,743.0 million. (the Company only: Baht 249.9 million).

2006 2005 2006 2005

Property, plant and equipment Accrued expenses

Acquisitions during the year mainly comprise construction in progress for the expansion of existing resort facilities dvance receipts from customers

in the Banyan Tree Phuket and the Sheraton Grande Laguna and the new Banyan Tree Lijiang facility in China. Other accounts payable

Service charge payable to hotel staff

Transfers out during the year mainly comprise completed construction in progress including a number of Banyan Value added tax payable

Tree Phuket Pool Villas which are being sold to property investors. Accrued rental to villa owners
Forward exchange contract

The hotel properties and land were reappraised by an independent professional appraisal company in its report Unearned income

dated 1" November 2004. The revaluation was conducted using the “Replacement Cost” basis for hotel properties Total
and a “Fair Market Value” basis for land.

As at 31" December 2006, a land area of approximately 1,073 Rai (2005: 1,024 Rai), at the fair value of Baht 3,437 million
"~ oq s . . 18. LONG-TERM LoANS Unit : Bah
(2005: Baht 3,268 million), and hotel buildings, fixtures, and equipment have been mortgaged to secure bank (Unit : Baht)

overdrafts, short-term loan and long-term loan facilities, and forward exchange contracts of the Company and its CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
subsidiaries. 2006 2005 2006 2005
. Secured a
Land awaiting development B e e
Long-term |OanS are repayab'e as 'FO”OWS:
Land awaiting development in Phuket, Chiang Rai and Mae Hong Sorn provinces was revalued on a “Fair Market Within one year
Value” basis by an independent professional appraisal company in its report dated 1™ November 2004. Between one and two years
Between three and five years 1, 1
As at 31" December 2006 and 2005, land awaiting development in Phuket province of approximately 45 Rai, at a Over five years
fair value of Baht 164 million, has been mortgaged to secure bank overdrafts, short-term loan facilities and long-
trm o fcltie of the Compary. o s S ol oossGll oroossil

16. LEASEHOLD RIGHTS (Unit : Baht)

HoTEL uNITS

Cost
As at 31% December 2004

Exchange rate adjustment 2005

As at 31" December 2005

Disposal

Exchange rate adjustment 2006

As at 31" December 2006

Accumulated amortisation

As at 31" December 2004

Amortisation of 2005

As at 31" December 2005

Disposal

Amortisation of 2006

As at 31" December 2006
Net
As at 31" December 2005

As at 31" December 2006

Leasehold rights of land is amortised over the term of the lease of 40 years from January 2005 to December 2044.

Leasehold rights of hotel units is amortised over the term of the lease of 20 years from July 2002 to June 2022.
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

Long-term loans consist of the following:

The Company

(1) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 8oo million,
at an interest rate of 5.25 percent per annum for the
first two years and at MLR per annum for the remain-
ing years.

On 25" November 2003, MLR was revised to be at a
fixed rate at 3.75 percent per annum with effect from
January 2004, repayable quarterly as from March
2002 as follows:

Year 2004 - 2006 : Baht 50 million per quarter

(2) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 892 million
repayable quarterly from July 2005 to April 2010, at an
interest rate of MLR per annum

Subsidiaries

(3) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 450 million,
repayable quarterly as from February 2003 to October
2007, at an interest rate as follows:

November 2003 - March 2005 4 percent per annum
(revised on 6" November 2003)

April 2005 onward: 2 percent per annum
(revised on 31" March 2005)

(4) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 200 million,
at an interest rate of 4 percent per annum for the first
three years and MLR less 1 percent per annum from
October 2007 onwards, repayable quarterly from
October 2005 to July 2009 (Except the outstanding
promissory note of Baht 5 million, which is at an
interest rate of 2 percent per annum since 31" March
2005)

(s) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 5o million,
at an interest rate of 3.5 percent per annum repayable
quarterly from June 2005 to March 2007 (Except the
outstanding promissory note of Baht 5 million, which
is at an interest rate of 2 percent per annum since 31"
March 2005)

(6) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 260 million
at an interest rate of MLR less 2 percent per annum
or 3 month fixed deposit rate add 2 percent per
annum whichever is higher repayable quarterly from
April 2006 to January 2010

(7) Bahtloan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 600 million
at an interest rate of MLR less 2 percent per annum
or 3 month fixed deposit rate add 2 percent per
annum whichever is higher repayable quarterly from
September 2006 to June 2011

MLR : Minimum Lending Rate
MMR : Money Market Rate
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2005

(Unit : Baht)

THE COMPANY ONLY

2006

2005

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31+t December 2006 and 2005

Long-term loans consist of the following:

®)

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 million
at an interest rate of MLR less 1.5 percent per annum
repayable quarterly from October 2006 to January 2009

©)

Baht loan from a bank, with a faci|ity of Baht 180 million
at an interest rate of MLR less 1.5 percent per annum
or 3 month fixed deposit rate add 2 percent per
annum whichever is higher repayab|e quarter|y from
April 2006 to January 2009

(20)

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 million
at an interest rate of MLR less 1.5 percent per annum
or 3 month fixed deposit rate add 2 percent per
annum whichever is higher repayable quarterly from
March 2007 to June 2009

(12)

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 1,004
million, repayable quarterly from December 2005 to
December 2013, at an interest rate which was revised
on December 12006 as follows:
December 2005 - November 2006: MLR per annum
December 2006 - November 2008:

MLR less 1 percent per annum
December 2008 -December 2014 :

MLR less o.5 percent per annum

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 300 million
at an interest rate of MLR less 1 percent per annum
repayab|e quarterly from March 2007 to June 2011

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 220 mil-
lion, from March 2006 - March 2008 at an interest
rate of MLR less 1.5 percent per annum or 3 month
fixed deposit rate plus 2.5 percent per annum,
whichever is higher, from March 2008 to June 2011 at
an interest rate of MLR less 1 percent per annum or 3
month fixed deposit rate plus 2.5 percent per annum,
whichever is higher, repayable quarterly from June
2007 to June 2011

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 mil-
lion, repayable quarterly from July 2008 to April 2014,
at an interest rate as follow:
April 2006 - November 2006: MLR per annum
December 2006 - November 2008 :

MLR less 1 percent per annum
December 2008 - April 2014 :

MLR less o.5 percent per annum

Baht of loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht go
million at an interest rate of MLR less 1 percent per
annum, repayab|e quarter|y from March 2008 to
March 2010

Total long-term loans

MLR

: Minimum Lending Rate

MMR : Money Market Rate

(Unit : Baht)

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

¢
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for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

The loans are secured by land, land awaiting development and all hotel buildings of the Company and subsidiaries,
as described in Note 15. The loan in (1) above is also secured by the pledge of the 2,450,000 ordinary shares of
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited, as described in Note 12, and is guaranteed by two subsidiaries. The loan in (2) above
is also secured by the pledge of the 10,188,203 ordinary shares of Thai Wah Plaza Limited, as described in Note 12.
The loans in (3) to (s), (8), (12) and (15) above are guaranteed by a subsidiary company. The loan in (6) above is
guaranteed by the Company.

The loan agreements of the Company and subsidiaries stipulate that they must comply with covenants relating to
various matters, including the maintenance of financial ratios.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve relates to the accounting of assets in subsidiaries at their fair values as at the acquisition date
and cannot be used for dividend payments.

STATUTORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Companies Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any),
until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend
distribution.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration represents the benefits paid to the Company’s directors in accordance with Section go of
the Public Limited Companies Act, exclusive of salaries and related benefits payable to executive directors.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

On 26" December 2004, Phuket experienced a Tsunami. The hotel businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries
which include Dusit Laguna Resort, Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket, Banyan Tree Phuket and Laguna Beach
Resort were affected by this disaster, although the impact on the hotels was minimal when compared to other
areas of Phuket. The extent of the damage was limited to restaurants close to the beach, and furniture, fixtures and
equipment of these restaurants and less than 50 guest rooms. However, the Company and its subsidiaries are
insured for property damage as a result of Acts of God, which includes a Tsunami. A provision for impairment of
the fixed assets destroyed or damaged as a result of the Tsunami was recorded in the financial statements for the
year 2004 amounting to Baht 45 million. Subsequently in 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries repaired and
renovated guest rooms, restaurants, furniture, fixture and equipment in order to continue its normal business
operations and have written off the assets that no longer can be used. Therefore the provision for impairment
included in the financial statements for the year 2004 has been reversed in the year 200s.

As a result of the Tsunami and the damage caused, this adversely impacted the level of business activity of the
hotel operations of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2005 and part of 2006. Management considers that the
impact has been limited to the short-term with the long range prospects being little affected. Moreover the
Company and its subsidiaries are insured for business interruption which will provide a level of compensation for
the reduction in business levels resulting from the damage caused by this event.

NuUMBER oF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED CosTs

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2006 2005 2006 2005

Number of employees at the end of year

Employee costs for the year (Thousand Baht)
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26.

27.

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

BAsic EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) for the year by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

PrROVIDENT FUND

The Company and its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Contributions are made to the fund by both employees and the Company
and its subsidiaries and will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the rules of the Company
and its subsidiaries’ provident fund.

During the year the Company and its subsidiaries contributed to provident funds as follows:
(Unit : Million Baht)

COMPANY’s
CONTRIBUTION IN

FuND MANAGER

OFFICE STAFF 2006 2005

HOTEL STAFF

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public
Company Limited

Laguna Grande Limited

Bangtao Grande Limited

Laguna Beach Club Limited

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited

Banyan Tree Gallery
(Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited

Laguna Service Company Limited

Laguna Holiday Club Limited

Thai Wah Plaza Limited

DiviDENDSs PaiD

Dividends declared in 2005 consisted of the following: (Unit: Baht)
nit : Baht

ToTAL DiviDEND

APPROVED BY DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Final dividends from 2005 retained earnings

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitment
As at 31" December 2006, the Company and its subsidiaries have capital commitments as follows:

a) The Company and its subsidiaries have commitments in respect of constructing new and renovating existing
hotel properties amouting to Baht 366.7 million (2005: Baht 1,293.0 million).

b) Four subsidiaries have commitments that relate to projects to develop properties for sale amounting to
approximately Baht 704.4 million (2005: Baht 353.8 million).
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for

T

28.

the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

Operating agreement

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into operating agreements with certain companies whereby these
companies are to operate the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ hotels and golf business. In consideration for such
services, the Company and subsidiaries are committed to pay remuneration at the rates, terms and basis specified
in the agreements. These agreements are summarised as follows:

COMPANY BUSINESS UNIT OPERATOR CONTRACT PERIOD

B

- Bal-

(a) Operator has exercised its option to extend for 10 years as the required conditions have been met.
(b) Operator has option to extend for 1 additional period of 10 years.
(c)

c) Operator has exercised option to extend to 31.12.2015 (as notified on 28" July 2004) and has an option to extend for a further 10 years.
(d) Operator has option to extend for 1 additional period of 20 years.

BANK GUARANTEES

As at 31" December 2006, there were bank guarantees amounting to Baht 43.5 million (the Company only: Baht 2.8
million) issued to various parties on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries, mainly provided for the usage of
electricity, other utilities and telecommunication channels (2005: Baht 36.8 million, the Company only: Baht 2.8
million).

ANNUAL REPORT 2006
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s segmental financial information, divided between hotel operations, office rental and property
development business. These operations are mainly carried on in Thailand. Below is the consolidated financial

information of the Company and its subsidiaries by segment. (Unit : Million Baht)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2006

ELIMINATION OF
INTER-SEGMENT CONSOLIDATION
REVENUES

ToTAL HOTEL| OFFICE PROPERTY
OPERATIONS RENTAL DEVELOPMENT

HoTEL GALLERY

BusiNEss OPERATIONS OTHERs

Revenue from external
Customers

Intersegment revenues

Total revenues

33880 306 ] 1080 382 W 950 2380 () W 5998 W
Segment income (loss)
Other income
Exchange gains (loss)
Unallocated expenses:
Selling and
administrative expenses
Interest expenses
Corporate income tax
Minority interest
Net income
Property, plant and
equipment - net
B B e |
. B0 B B B BEEL B B |

Total assets

(Unit : Million Baht)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2005

|
ELIMINATION OF
INTER-SEGMENT CONSOLIDATION
REVENUES

HoTEL GALLERY Orners ToTAL HOTEL OFFICE PROPERTY
BusiNEss OPERATIONS OPERATIONS RENTAL DEVELOPMENT

Revenue from external
customers

Intersegment revenues

Total revenues

Segment income

Other income

Exchange gains (loss)

Unallocated expenses:
Selling and

administrative expenses

Interest expenses

Corporate income tax

Minority interest

Net loss before
extraordinary item

Extraordinary item

Net loss

Property, plant and
equipment - net

Total assets

Transfer prices between business segments are as set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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for the years ended 31+ December 2006 and 2005

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Significant financial instruments carried in the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, cash at banks,
trade accounts receivable, loans, investments, short-term and long-term loans.

30.1 Financial risk management policies

The Company is exposed to risks from changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates and risks from
nonperformance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Company uses derivatives, as and when it
considers appropriate, to manage such risks. In addition, the Company has a policy to enter into contracts
with creditworthy counterparties. Therefore, the Company does not expect any material financial losses to arise
as a result of counterparties failing to discharge their obligations as stipulated in the financial instruments.

The accounting policies for derivatives are disclosed in the notes to financial statements regarding significant
accounting policies. The Company has no policy to hold or issue derivatives for speculative or trading
purposes.

30.2 Credit Risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable
from the hotel, space rental, and property development businesses. However, due to the large number and
diversity of the entities comprising the Company and its subsidiaries’ customer base, the Company and its
subsidiaries do not anticipate material losses from debt collection.

30.3 Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relate primarily to their deposits with financial
institutions, long-term trade accounts receivable and bank overdrafts and loans. However, since most of the
Company’s financial assets and liabilities have floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to
the market interest rates, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal. The Company and its subsidiaries
do not use derivative financial instruments to hedge such risk (the detail of long-term loans are set out in
Note 18).

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31" December 2006, classified by type of interest rate are
summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities carrying fixed interest rates further
classified based on the contractual repricing or maturity date (whichever is earlier).

CONSOLIDATED
FiXep INTEREST RATES
FLOATING NonN Fixep
WITHIN 1-5 OVER  INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL INTEREST
1 YEAR YEARS 5 YEARS RATE BEARING RATE

(MiLLION BAHT) (% P.A.)

Financial assets

Cash equivalents (excluding cash)

Restricted deposits at financial
institution

Long-term trade accounts receivable

Financial liabilities

Short-term loans

Long-term loans from
related companies

Long-term loans from
financial institutions

NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 315t December 2006 and 2005

THE ComPANY ONLY
FIXED INTEREST RATES ‘
FLOATING Non Fixep
WITHIN 1-5 OVER  INTEREST INTEREST TOTAL  INTEREST
1 YEAR YEARS 5 YEARS RATE BEARING RATE

(MiLLION BAHT) (% p.A.)

Financial assets

Cash equivalents (excluding cash)

Long-term loans to Subsidiaries

Financial liabilities

Short-term loans

Long-term loans from Subsidiaries

Long-term loans from
financial institutions

30.4 Foreign currency risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk relates primarily to their receivables,
payables and loans which are denominated in foreign currencies. In addition to those transactional exposures,
the Company is also exposed to the effect of foreign exchange movements on its investment in foreign
subsidiaries, which currently are not hedged by any derivative financial instrument.

The Company and a subsidiary have entered into forward exchange contracts to hedge their hotel revenues
which are denominated in foreign currencies. Forward exchange contracts outstanding as at 31" December
2006 are summarised below.

FORWARD RATE FOR
FOoREIGN CURRENCY | AMOUNT BOUGHT AMOUNT BOUGHT MATURITY
(BAHT PER US DOLLAR)
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32.

33-

34.

NOTES ToO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the years ended 31t December 2006 and 2005

30.5 Foreign currency assets/liabilities

As at 31" December 2006, the outstanding balances of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are as follow:
(Unit : Thousand)

THE CoMPANY ONLY

CONSOLIDATED
ForREIGN CURRENCY

ASSESTS LIABILITIES ASSETS LIABILITIES

US dollar
Singapore
Australian

30.6 Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating interest
rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the balance
sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of
the financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the

instrument.
LITIGATION

A case was brought to the Administration Court in which the Company and four subsidiaries were co-defendants.
The Plaintiff has requested the Court to order the Phuket Provincial Land Office, named as the defendant, to
revoke some land title deeds under ownership of the said companies, on the grounds that such title deeds were
issued illegally. The land titles in question were issued well before the co-defendants purchased the land, which
the co-defendants subsequently purchased in good faith. On 15" August 2006, the Central Administrative Court
ruled in favor of the Company and its subsidiaries. The plaintiff did not appeal against the Court’s judgment within
the prescribed deadline on 14" September 2006. Consequently, this case is now deemed to be finalised.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors’ meeting No. 6/2006 of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited (the Company)
held on 27" December 2006 approved the divestment of 20.96 percent of Laguna Banyan Tree Limited (LBTL)’s
equity interest in Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd. (Lijiang) to Banyan Tree Holding Limited (BTHL), at the total
consideration of USD 2,857,005.15 (approximately Baht 105.7 million) effective 1" January 2007. Upon completion of
the transaction, the equity interest ratio of LBTL in Lijiang will be decreased from 70.00 percent to 49.04 percent.
As a result, Lijiang will no longer be a subsidiary of the Company. The meeting also approved the restructure of
the existing LBTL's loan facility provided to Lijiang to the level of LBTL’s new equity interest ratio. The Company
is in the process of implementing the resolutions.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31" December 2005 have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s classifications, with no effect on previously reported net loss or shareholders' equity.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27" February 2007.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Heap OFFIcE

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
6", 22nd-23rd floor, Thai Wah Tower |,

21/12A, 21/13, 21/65B, 21/66B, 21/67

South Sathorn Road, Tungmahamek,

Sathorn, Bangkok 10120, Thailand

TeLepHONE No.
66 (0) 2677 4455

FacsimiLE No.
66 (0) 2285 0980

WEBSITES
www.|agunaresorts.com (Corporate Website)
www.lagunaphuket.com (Marketing Website)

CORPORATE REGISTRATION NUMBER
0107535000371 (Former: Bor Mor Jor 70)

TyPE oF MAJOR BUsINESs
Hotels, Resorts, Tourism Industry,
Property Development and Sales
and Timeshare Operation

ReGISTERED CAPITAL
Baht 846,701,430

PaiD-up CAPITAL
Baht 846,701,430

No. AND TYPE OF SHARES IssuED AND PAR VALUE
84,670,143 ordinary shares
at the par value of Baht 10 per share

ForeIGN LimIT
Not exceeding 49 percent of total issued and paid-up
shares of the Company

PERCENTAGE ALLOWED FoRrR THAI TRUST FuND
Not exceeding 20 percent of the total issued and paid-up
shares of the Company

THe DivipenD PoLicy

is structured into 2 components as follows:

(1) a fixed component amounting to one third of net
earnings for the year attributable to its shareholders; and

(2) a variable component subject to the Board of
Directors’ discretion on the availability of cash after
taking into account major capital expenditure and
debt repayment obligations in the following year.

ToTAL EMPLOYEES

573 employees (Only employees employed by Laguna
Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited as at 31"
December 2006)
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SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED COMPANIES IN WHICH THE COMPANY HAS SHAREHOLDING (un) (unia) (un) (Mossv+N0de) (%)

EXCEEDING 10 PERCENT USBn Us:Innssio REGISTERED PAR VALUE PAip-up SHAREHOLDING

nuoAn:1deu yafinsils nusts: 10 "n ‘umsfiofu CompANY TypPE oF BUSINESS CAPITAL  |(BAHT/SHARE)  CAPITAL ProPORTION

(un) (u/iu) (un) (MYASV+N08L) (%) (BanT) (BAHT) (DirecT+INDIRECT)
usen Us:1nngsiio REGISTERED = PAR VALUE PAiD-upP SHAREHOLDING (%)
ComPANY TYPE OF BUsINESS CAPITAL  |(BAHT/SHARE)  CAPITAL ProPORTION
(BAHT) (BAHT)  (DiRECT+INDIRECT)
(%)
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nug1S:1dd
(un)
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CAPITAL
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SHAREHOLDING
PROPORTION
(DireCT+INDIRECT)
(%)
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Us:1nngsno
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nudAn:1Gau yadinsld nugas:1ad
(un) (un/ju) (un)
REGISTERED | PARVALUE Paip-up SHAREHOLDING
CAPITAL  |(BAHT/SHARE)  CAPITAL ProPORTION
(BAHT) (BAHT)  (DireCT+INDIRECT)
(%)

“m "aun1siiafu
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GENERAL INFORMATION

GENERAL INFORMATION

nudAn:1Geu yadinsl nuyns:1ad A “oumsiiaiiu nuoAn:1agu yaA1nnsaly nugas:uad " "oumsiiaiu
(noAsv+n10dau) (%) (un) (un/iu) (un) (noAsv+n108eu) (%)
usen Us:1nngsnD REGISTERED | PARVALUE Paip-up SHAREHOLDING usén Us:1Nngsio REGISTERED = PARVALUE PAiD-up SHAREHOLDING
CoMPANY TyPE OF BUsINESS CAPITAL | (BAHT/SHARE)  CAPITAL PROPORTION Company TypE oF BusINEss CapiTAL  ((BAHT/SHARE)  CAPITAL PROPORTION
(BAHT) (BaHT) (DirECT+INDIRECT) (BAHT) (BAHT) | (DirRECT+INDIRECT)
(%) (%)

(u1n) (un/iju) (un)

et 27 funan 2549 MiszguanznssumMsvenising Idewiamsneduamulusaniooas 20.96 Ausn e udu 3 i (USENdesiLFINg
fevuegiesnz 100) Niveghnsin aiFes Uudy v lafia 9100 ud 158 Tudl 3 Teads “91ia AN 1 w9 2550 A IuRvAUYEILSEN a1l
ud 13 9100 Tunddn ades Wudu 3 Tafia $ida Husdng desglasnedenszanasainfosas 70.00 Wuiosas 49.04

N , ) L e ** Juaauaiui 30 unnAY 2549 vaninaaiinuInunuIenzdourazyamianliderfuvensinfsanzdivulmlszmaadlsldgnoni@nlasraudangrune
n 2y ecember 2006, the Lompany's board approve € divestment ot 20.96 percent oT equity interest ot Laguna banyan Iree Limited, a wholly-owne
¢ Decemb 6, the C Board d the divestment of 20.96 t of equity interest of L. B Tree Limited, a wholl d

subsidiary, in Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd. to Banyan Tree Holdings Limited. Effective 1* January 2007, the equity interest ratio of Laguna Banyan
Tree Limited in Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co., Ltd. in which the Company indirectly held decreased from 70.00 percent to 49.04 percent. companies.

** With effect from 30" January 2006, the concepts of authorised/registered capital and par value have been abolished by law in respect of all Singapore
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MA]OR SHAREHOLDERS as at 29”‘ December 2006

s1gBodiioiu/ d1usuiuiiie/ d1usuijuifiesau

%
SHAREHOLDERS No. OF SHAREHOLDINGS TOTAL SHAREHOLDINGS ’

ruetig/Note

o o

o A =~ va o & oo o Ay A gl o - % o %
# = wiulla yanzdouddeduasiar o daau wisagdeyaddedunidhufagiunounsszan wydtevu dszad 2550 Tdan
= a P . .
www.lagunaresorts.com Sailuiiuludgsiaveanssng / As at the last share register book closing date. Update shareholder
information prior to the 2007 Annual General Meeting can be accessed through www.lagunaresorts.com, the Company’s
corporate website.
* Av & av oo L ¢ o v ao L . .
= 3N F93HN Uudy 3 Teada “ 1A Jenaniugy 7 A company which is under the control of Banyan Tree Holdings Limited
** = yiEnnenthveanguuish Uil v leads “ 91na 7 Broker of Banyan Tree Holdings Limited and its Group of Companies
A v oo Y o i ' A o = v .
*XE = yFEN Dl v3 Teads T 9ina foviieamu 2,870,106 minelunsaunuivefasudauiiuaudiadn / Banyan Tree Holdings
Limited holds 2,870,106 units in Thai Trust Funds
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REMUNERATION & OTHER BENEFITS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES During the Year 2006

10eUs:gu/ Geous:y guowiu LRH

Us:Te :| | Us: g A fifle ru
Tugnu:nssunst s:1m90U 2549 31 suonAu 2549

(uvin/0) uSmsA LSRR (uin/0) (W) (u)

" . . (un/0)
S1890 E)/ NAME Aunu \)/ PosiTiON Meeting fees/Other | Meeting fees/Other | Meeting fees/Other | Increase/(Decrease) Total Number
Benefits Received | Benefits Received | Benefits Received of LRH Shares of LRH Share(s)
as Directors of as Audit and Risk as Remuneration During held as at
the Board Committee Members Committee Members Year 2006 31t Dec. 2006
(Baht / Year) (Baht / Year) (Baht [ Year) ( shares)) ( shares)
1 wgls na T Usemunssums dssnunssumsuims
Mr. Ho Kwon Ping Uszmunssumsmuuamnouun

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Remuneration Committee Chairman

2wy swa USan ATTINMIHIAMINGULTENA
Mr. Surapon Supratya Group Managing Director
3 wels neds AFINAMIHIANMT (UIMIMUBBNILY)
Mr. Ho Kwoncjan Managing Director (Design Services)
4 woluda Tode ATINMIFIANT (M Qi)
Mr. Michael R. Ayling* Managing Director (Laguna Phuket)
5 wo Aol wead AIINMID 52 YILHUNTINNIATI ou
Mr. Steven M. Small asIIAI By

Independent Director &
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman

6 wugaN ety ASIIMTD 52 NTINAIATIV B
Mr. Udom Vichayabhai UAEIMIANNL B NITUAMIMHUAMADLIUNY
Independent Director,
Audit and Risk Committee Member &
Remuneration Committee Member

7 93 RaF mayouanyal ASIUMIB 32 AIINMIATI DL
Dr. Jingjai Hanchanlash HAsLEMIANNL BY NIIUMIMHLAMIABULNY
Independent Director,
Audit and Risk Committee Member &
Remuneration Committee Member

8 g 150 993 NIIUNID 32
Mr. Satit Rungkasiri Independent Director
9 wyAmna S0iiand AT 32
Mr. Vudhiphol Suriyabhivadh Independent Director
10 WYREEA I AITUMI
Mr. Ariel P. Vera Director
11 1 NFY ansiel AIINAT
Ms. Sirivan Skulkerevathana Director
12 1Y 13N AITUMI
Mr. Kuan Chiet DUNYMIAVLATINMINNUAR ABINY

Director & Secretary to
Remuneration Committee

13 weilow Vaildhmns N3IUN
Mr. Niyom Tassaneetipagorn Director

14 wwwailuad wisoines ATINAG
Mr. Bernold O. Schroeder  Director
15 19§30 15AATFF AIINMS

Mr. Stuart D. Reading** Director

16 LA waniumi ATINAT DYMIAVLNTTUMIUIENA
Ms. Nanchalee Kecharananta iauynsasiznssumsnsn euuaz
TEVRERPRHIINA]
Director & Secretary to the Board
and Secretaryto the Audit Committee

17 wediant wedyad fedgnnems ununasy eumely
Mr. Viwat Chervibool Assistant Vice President, Operational Audit

18 weiinug Ad v fneddnems ununmugulasns
Mr. Niphon Kitisook Assistant Vice President, Project Control

19 oM Wy dumsny HHuK81100mM3 tunNguINY
Mr. Passapong Nantarak Assistant Vice President, Legal

20 MEINEA - Ay feenens ununwionmesa
Mr. Richard M. Skene Assistant Vice President, Property
21 Wegi NosHY fiamsmll Tausug~a mgi 3 edn
Mr. Jan M. R. Verduyn General Manager, Dusit Laguna Resort

* "lé’%’uu@ia%mﬂuniinmipjﬁ’ﬂmi (@i i) Tﬂﬂﬁmmﬁuﬁii’uﬁ} NINYIAY 2549 ‘ .

** |@suudenaiiunssunsising laslszguanznssumatsing dedudl 10 "emau 2549 unuil ey *wwn ldaeennnmsfiunssuns
* was appointed to take the position of Managing Director (Laguna Phuket) with effect from 1* July 2006

** was appointed as Director of the Company by the Board of Director’s Meeting on 10" August 2006 replacing directorship of

Mr. James R. Batt who resigned s1gv1uUs: 91U 2549
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MONETARY REMUNERATION
(1) Directors:

Monetary remuneration was paid as meeting fees
only to 5 independent directors of the Board, 3
independent directors who are member of the Audit
and Risk Committee and 2 independent directors
who are member of the Remuneration Committee
for the 12 months ended 31" December 2006 in the
total amount of Baht 5,094,000.

(2) Executives of the Company:

Monetary remuneration was paid to 14* executives
for the 12 months ended 31" December 2006 in the
total amount of Baht 75,553,119 consisting of salaries,
bonus, car allowance, housing allowance, social
security payment, provident fund payment, tax paid
by the Company and laptop allowance.

OTHER REMUNERATION
(1) Independent Directors:

Benefits in the form of spa and gallery vouchers were
given to the 5 independent directors of the Board for
the 12 months ended 31* December 2006 in the total
amount of Baht 400,000.

(2) Executives of the Company:

Employee benefits such as medical, accident &
health insurance, complimentary vouchers, food and
beverage allowance, etc. were given to 14* executives
for the year ended 31" December 2006 in the total
amount of Baht 7,656,708.

* Including Mr. James R. Batt who resigned from
Managing Director (Laguna Phuket) with effect
from 1" July 2006
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Goob CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE

ReEPORT ON PRINCIPLES OF Goob CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

LRH is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance within the Group in order to protect
and enhance long-term shareholder value. The Company
has adopted a set of good corporate governance
practices and policies which are modeled on principles
advocated by The Stock Exchange of Thailand. These
practices and policies are set out in the ensuing sections.

1. Po|icy on Corporate Governance

For the purpose of preserving the interests of all its
stakeholders, the Company has adopted the following
Code of Business Conduct in the course of its operations,
approved by the Board of Directors and distributed
through the organization. The Code has been drafted
based on the principles of integrity, transparency and good
business and social ethics to achieve sustainable growth.

o The Board of Directors and Senior Management are
expected to:

(1) Carry out their duties and responsibilities
prudently, with due care and at all times take into
consideration the interests of the Company’s
various groups of stakeholders.

(2) Attend every meeting, except for special
circumstances, which make attendance not
possible, with the view to effectively contribute
to issues being considered. Sufficient time should
be allocated to important matters for in-depth
discussions and independent views and opinions
should be sought from each director | senior
management.

(3) Ensure that the legal rights of stakeholders,
including employees, suppliers, communities,
competitors and creditors are not violated by any
of the Company’s actions or decisions.

(4) Support cooperation between the Company and
the various groups of stakeholders in order to
secure the business wealth and stability.

(5) Resolve conflict of interests carefully, honestly,
fairly and independently in the best interest of
the Company.

(6) Fix remuneration, which is commensurate with
market rates in the same business and with the
performances of the Company and the individual.

(7) Disclose information correctly, completely,
transparently and on a timely basis together with
adequate supporting data, if any.
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(8) Implement and maintain an effective internal
monitoring and control system over finance,
operations and regulatory compliance of the
Company. The system should incorporate risk
management to capture eariy warning signs to
problems and extraordinary items, which may
arise.

(9) Value the importance of human resources by
providing competitive compensation packages
to attract, retain and motivate quality staff and
treat each employee fairly and without prejudice.

(10) Define the proportion of executive directors and
independent non-executive directors to balance
their power. There should be a clear separation of
power and authorities so that no one would be
granted unlimited power.

(11) Ensure all corporate business is conducted in

accordance with high standards of corporate

governance with legally and ethically accepted
corporate practices.

Strictly safe keep the Company’s confidential

—
=
N

~—

information and activities and not to use any
internal and/or confidential information of the
Company for personal gain.

(13) Report their transaction of the Company’s shares
in accordance with the rules of the relevant
authorities and to the Company.

Employees of the Company are expected to:

(1) Strictly follow all rules and regulations of the
Company and instructions from their superior.
Be polite, obedient, and respectful and maintain
esprit de corps among colleagues and assist each
other in the course of work.

(2) Perform their duties diligently and punctually
and not to abandon or disregard any duty or work
that has been assigned to them.

(3) Treat all Company’s clients courteously,
respectfully and promptly.

(4) Strictly safe keep the Company’s confidential
information and activities and not to use any
internal and/or confidential information of the
Company for personal gain.

Social Contributions & Responsibility

(1) The Company shall not perform any activity,
which may adversely affect the national security,
economy and well being of the people. The
Company shall consider supporting charitable
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organizations at its discretion.

(2) The Company shall give support to the employees,
the management, and Board of Directors to pursue
environmental and nature conservation activities
and shall not undertake any activities, which may
cause harm to the environment and community.

(3) The Board of Directors, management and all
employees shall uphold themselves as honorable
citizens and avoid any illicit activities, which may
damage the reputation of the Company.

2. Board Composition - Balance of Power for
Non-Executive Directors

The Board currently comprises 16 members of whom 5
are independent directors, being about one-third of the
Board, thus providing for a strong and independent ele-
ment on the Board capable of exercising objective judg-
ment on corporate affairs of the Group. The term of office
of a director of the Board shall be three years. A director
of the Board who vacates his/her office by rotation may
be re-appointed.

The independent Directors are Mr Steven M. Small,
Mr. Udom Vichayabhai, Mr. Satit Rungkasiri, Mr.
Vudhiphol Suriyabhivadh and Dr. Jingjai Hanchanlash.

Definition of “Independent Directors”

“Independent Directors” means the persons who have all the
necessary qualifications and independence in accordance
with the regulations of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. At present, the said regulation
prescribes that an Independent Director is as follows:

(1) an individual who holds shares amounting to not
more than 5 percent of the total voting rights of the
Company, parent company, subsidiaries, affiliated
companies or other juristic persons that may have a
confict of interest;

(2) an individual who is not an employee, member of
staff, advisor (who regularly receives a salary) or
controlling person of the Company, parent company,
subsidiaries, affiliated companies or other juristic
persons that may have a confilict of interest;

(3) an individual who is not a person who has a blood
relationship or is related by registration in accordance
with the law to be father, mother, spouse, brother, sister,
son or daughter, of a member of the management,
major shareholder, controlling person or person who
will be proposed to be a member of the management
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or controlling person of the Company or subsidiaries;
and

(4) an individual who has no business relationship with
the Company, parent company, subsidiaries, affiliated
companies or other juristic persons that may have a
conflict of interest in such a way that it may prevent
him or her from exercising his/her discretion
independently, and there are no other circumstances
that may hinder him or her from rendering an
independent opinion in connection with the business
operation of the company.

The Board comprises business leaders and professionals
with financial, accounting, legal and business management
backgrounds. Key information on the directors are set
out on the earlier pages under section Board of Directors
of the Annual Report.

3. Board Functions - Leadership & Vision

The Board’s primary functions are to set corporate policy
and overall strategy for the Group and to provide effective
oversight of the management of the Group’s business
and affairs. Apart from its statutory duties, the
responsibilities of the Board includes:

i. formulating and approving broad policies, strategies
and financial objectives of the Group;

ii. reviewing the financial performance and taking
responsibility for the financial statements of the
Group;

iii. monitoring and approving the Group’s key operational
initiatives, annual budget, major investment and
funding decisions;

iv. ensuring that the adequacy of internal controls and
risk management of the Group is regularly reviewed
and evaluated;

v. approving the nominations of Board directors and
appointments to the various Board committees;

vi. assuming responsibility for corporate governance;

and
approving the charter of the Audit and Risk

vii.
Committee and Remuneration Committee so as to
clearly state the scope of its duties and responsibilities.

These functions are either carried out directly by the
Board or through committees established by the Board,
principally the Audit and Risk Committee and
Remuneration Committee. The delegation of authority by
the Board to the Committees enables the Board to
achieve operational efficiency by empowering these
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Committees to decide on matters within certain limits of
authority and yet maintain control over major policies
and decisions.

All major investments require the approval as follows:-

- Investments more than US$ 10 million to be approved
by the Board.

- Investments between US$ 5 million to US$ 10 million
to be jointly approved by the Chief Executive Officer
and any 1 director.

- Investments less than US$ 5 million to be approved by
the Chief Executive Officer.

All information disclosure must comply with rules and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand pertaining
to the acquisition and disposition of assets and/or the
connected transaction.

4. Board of Directors’ Meetings

The Company conducts regular scheduled Board meetings
on a quarterly basis which are planned and formally
agreed upon in advance at the start of the financial year.
Additional meetings are convened as and when
circumstances warrant. In 2006, the Company conducted
six Board meetings and the attendance of the directors at
these meetings is shown below.

No. oF BoArRD
MEETINGS ATTENDED

Mr. Sati

Mr. Vudhiphol Suriyabhivadhil]
Mr. Ariel P. Vera (I

Ms. Siri

Mr. James R. Batt who resigned.
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The Corporate Secretary is responsible for collating and
distributing board papers for each of the agenda items at
least 7 days prior to the meeting so as to provide
directors with sufficient time to prepare for the meeting.
Each meeting typically lasts between one to two hours
and the Chairman of the Board will provide adequate
time for management to present information and to
allow the directors to fully discuss the important issues.

Additionally, the Board is of the view that the contribution
of each director should not be focused only on his or her
attendance at Board and/or Committee meetings. A
director’s contribution may also extend beyond the
confines of the formal environment of Board meetings,
through the sharing of views, advice, experience and
strategic networking relationships which would further
the interests of the Company.

5. Chairman & Chief Executive Officer - Aggregation or
Separation of Positions

Currently, the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Ho Kwon Ping,
is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Ho is the founder of the Company and is the sibling
of Mr. Ho Kwongjan, an Executive Director and Managing
Director (Design & Services) of the Company.

As Chairman, Mr. Ho Kwon Ping bears responsibility for
the workings of the Board. The Chairman, in consultation
with the management and the Corporate Secretary, sets
the board meeting agenda and ensures that board members
are provided with adequate and timely information. Key
management staff who have prepared the papers, or who
can provide additional insight into the matters to be
discussed are invited to present the paper during the
Board meeting. As Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Ho bears
executive responsibility for the workings of the Group.

Mr. Ho Kwon Ping has been a director of the Company
since July 1986 and Chief Executive Officer since
September 1999 and is closely associated with the
Group’s success. The Board is of the view that the current
structure is adequate given that Mr. Ho Kwon Ping has
been able to effectively and competently execute the
responsibilities of both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer positions.

6. Shareholders’ Rights & Equitable Treatment and
Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company fully complies with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of shareholders’ rights and treatment.
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All shareholders have the same basis and rights in the
casting of votes at meetings and the receipt of dividends
when declared by the Company. These are calculated
based on their respective shareholding in the Company.

At every Annual General Meeting, shareholders are given
the right to approve matters such as election of directors
(shareholders can elect directors individually), directors’
remuneration, appointment of external auditors and
dividend payment.

The Company’s policy is to conduct shareholders’ meetings
which not only meet all legal requirements but to also
provide a platform and opportunity for shareholders to
communicate their views and ask the directors and the
management questions regarding matters affecting the
Company.

At least 7 days prior to the date of the Annual General
Meeting, all shareholders will receive a package containing
the notice and agenda of the meeting, information related
to the agenda items, proxy forms and the annual report of
the Company. This is to enable shareholders to prepare
themselves for the meeting and to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting if they are
unable to attend the meeting personally. Additionally, at
every meeting the Company will appoint one independent
director to undertake proxy voting on behalf of
shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting and
had informed the Company prior to the meeting. The
notice of the Annual General Meeting will also be
advertised in the press.

At the start of the meeting, the Corporate Secretary will
explain the meeting proceedings and voting methodoloy
to shareholders. Apart from the external auditor who will
attend the Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Committee and Remuneration
Committee will also endeavour as far as reasonably
practicable to be present at the Annual General Meeting
to address, and assist the directors in addressing, queries
raised by the shareholders. Ample time will be allocated
to shareholders to discuss each agenda item and a
professional translator is present at the meeting to assist
shareholders and the Board to communicate more
effectively in English and Thai.

Detailed results of the vote of each agenda item will be
displayed for shareholders’ scrutiny at the end of each
meeting. The same results will also be included in the
minutes of the meeting which are accurately and
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completely documented and will be sent to all
shareholders for their review prior to the following meeting,

7. Conflicts of Interests

Transactions between the Company and its related parties
which may give rise to a conflict of interest are scrutinized
by the Audit and Risk Committee and if necessary, the
approval to enter into such transactions are sought from
the Board of Directors and shareholders.

Such transactions are made on terms and pricing that has
been negotiated on an arm’s length basis. In the event
that the price is unavailable, the Company will then rely
on the report of an independent appraiser appointed by
the Company to value important related party transactions
to arrive at a pricing which is fair to both the Company
and the related party.

The Company has and will always comply with all Rules
and Regulations laid down by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand. In addition, all connected party transactions are
completely and accurately disclosed in the Company’s
2006 annual report and Form 56-1.

The Company has put in place preventive measures in
regards to the use of inside information for personal
gains and this is disclosed in the Company’s 2006 annual
report and Form s6-1 under the topic ‘Supervision of the
Use of Inside Information’.

8. Business Ethics

The Company holds strongly to the belief that good busi-
ness ethics is one of the key elements for sustainable
growth. In the interest of promoting and advocating
good business ethics throughout the organization,
standard operating procedures and a statement of business
conduct has been documented, distributed to employees
of the Company and these are monitored on an on-going
basis to ensure compliance by all employees.

9. Various Groups of Stakeholders

In its pursuit for sustainable growth and financial returns
for its shareholders, the Company strives to become a
role model corporate citizen. It respects the rights of all
its stakeholders and conducts its operations fairly and
strictly in compliance with all laws, rules and regulations.

Shareholders: The Board of Directors is committed to
perform its duties honestly, transparently
and diligently in the best interest of all its
shareholders to preserve and enhance
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Employees:

Customers:

Competitors:

Society:

long term shareholder value. All important
information which may have an impact on
the Company’s share price andfor
shareholders decisions are fully disclosed
on a timely manner.

Being in the hospitality industry, the
Company believes that its people are its
greatest asset. The Company has therefore
taken steps to ensure that all labour laws
are complied with and all employees are
treated fairly without discrimination or
favoritism so as to instill a sense of pride
and dignity into the work that they perform.
The Company offers competitive pay
packages and has welfare benefits to all its
employees and has continual upgrading
programs so that employees have the
opportunity to advance in their careers.
Additionally, the Company provides its
employees a safe and conductive working
environment.

The Company aims to provide its guests a
safe and unforgettable experience at its
hotels and resorts. Safety of its guests is
one of the Company’s top priorities and in
this regard a safety committee has been
formed at each property with the objective
of improving the safety of our guests.

The Company believes that competition is
the essence of a free and open market and
therefore avoids any actions which may
prevent, obstruct or discourage potential
competitors from entering the markets in
which the Company operates in. The
Company takes the view that healthy
competition encourages product and
service innovations in the market place
which would increase market standards
and ultimately benefit consumers and
society at large.

The Company aims to be a socially
responsible company by contributing
towards environmental conservation
programs and to the local community
which is exemplified by participating and
organizing events such as the Sea Turtle
Conservation Program, Elephant Help
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Foundation, establishing Laguna Childcare Centre, hold-
ing National Children’s Day event, and
establishing the Phuket Tsunami Recovery
Fund.

Suppliers: The Company strives to forge long-term
business relationships with its suppliers
and therefore has the policy to always
give a fair profit to its suppliers and to

respect payment terms and conditions.

Creditors: The Company considers creditors as
important business partners and therefore
aims to fulfill all its obligations to its

creditors.
10. Remuneration for Directors & Management

The Company is careful in giving competitive, but not
excessive, remuneration to its independent directors and
management so as to attract and retain highly qualified
personnel and has consistently used the industry practice
as a guideline.

Remuneration for independent directors is first reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee which is then
submitted for approval by shareholders at each Annual
General Meeting. Independent directors who take on the
additional responsibility of being a member of the Audit
and Risk Committee and/or Remuneration Committee
are each paid an additional fee.

There is no remuneration paid by the Company and
subsidiaries to management who hold directorships on
the Company’s Board and positions on the
Remuneration Committee.

Annual review of management remuneration is based on
the performance of the Company and performance of
the individual employee.

Remuneration paid to individual independent directors
of the Board and management is disclosed in the
Company’s 2006 annual report under the topic
‘Remuneration & Other Benefits of the Directors and
Shareholdings of Directors and Executives’ and
‘Management Remuneration’.

11. Committees

In 2005 the Audit Committee, which was formed in
November 1999 and has performed its duties since 2000,
expanded its role to include Risk Management and in
doing so the Committee was renamed the Audit and Risk
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Committee. In 2006, the Audit and Risk Committee
comprises three independent directors and is chaired by
Mr. Steven M. Small. The Committee performs the
following functions:

1. Seeks to ensure that the financial reports of the
Company are accurate and suFFicient;

2. Seeks to ensure that the Company has appropriate
and effective internal controls and internal audit;

3. Considers, selects, nominates and proposes fees for
the external auditor of the Company;

4. Be responsible for the resolution of disagreements
between management and the external auditor
regarding financial reporting;

5. Evaluates the independence of the external auditor.
In this connection, the external auditor shall report
directly to the Audit and Risk Committee on matters
related to the activities within the Company;

6. Seeks to ensure that the Company has complied with
the Securities and Exchange Acts, Stock Exchange
requirements or laws related to the business of the
Company;

7. Seeks to ensure disclosure of accurate and complete
information concerning the Company in the case of
anentryinto a related party transaction or a transaction
that may cause a conflict of interest;

8. Reviews or discusses, as and when appropriate, policies
regarding risk assessment and risk management and
the steps management has taken to monitor and
control such exposures;

9. Seeks to oversee and ensure a continuous process for
managing risk and to report on all areas of concern to
the Board;

10. Reviews and assesses the adequacy of the Audit and
Risk Committee Charter annually and recommends
modification to the Board as needed;

11. Prepares a report concerning the control and
supervision of the business of the Audit and Risk
Committee to be disclosed in the annual report of the
Company, which must be signed by the Chairman of
the Audit and Risk Committee; and

12. Performs any other acts authorised by the Board of
Directors of the Company with the approval of the
Audit and Risk Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee has full access to and
cooperation from the Company’s Group Risk Committee,
other senior management, the internal auditor, and other
staff of the Company and has full discretion to invite any
director or senior management to attend its meetings.
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The Audit and Risk Committee met six times in the year
2006. Each of the Audit and Risk Committee members
attended all the six meetings convened in 2006.

The Remuneration Committee was formed in November
2003 and has started to perform its duties in 2004. It
comprises three members and is chaired by Mr. Ho Kwon
Ping. The Committee has an objective to formulate and
align HR policies and programs for senior management
to business goals and market practices, to attract and
retain the right peop|e for senior management positions
in the Company and to ensure that the Company’s senior
management remuneration and benefit package remain
competitive. The Committee performs the following
functions:

1. Proposes  guidelines and  makes  broad
recommendations for the annual salary increment
and bonus policies for the Company;

2. Reviews and if necessary, proposes changes to the
remuneration of the Company’s directors serving on
the Board of Directors, Audit and Risk Committee
and Remuneration Committee;

3. Reviews and if necessary, proposes changes or
additions to senior management welfare, benefit,
salary and bonus policies (such as employee stock
options and other employee welfare allowances,
subsidies and schemes);

4. Reports to the Board of Directors on the Remuneration
Committee’s activities and findings; and

5. Reviews the Remuneration Committee charter at
least once a year and recommends modifications to
the Board of Directors as needed.

The Remuneration Committee met once in the year 2006
and all members attended.

12. Controlling System & Internal Audit

The Company realizes the significance of effective
systems of control, such as standard operating procedures,
particularly in management and operations. Hence, the
duties and responsibilities of the employees and the
management are clearly defined. The Company has put
in place policies to safe guard the Company’s assets and
duties between the operators and the appraisal are clearly
separated for effective checks and balances. Furthermore,
the internal audit of the financial systems is also performed.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit plays an important role in monitoring an
effective system of internal controls. To enable the
effectiveness of the internal audit function, the internal
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auditors of the Company report to the Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Committee and administratively to the
Group Managing Director of the Company. The Internal
Audit checks and monitors the operations of the
Company for compliance with the Company’s internal
policies as well as all relevant laws and regulations. The
Audit and Risk Committee reviews the activities of the
internal auditors on a quarterly basis and is satisfied that
the internal audit function is independent of the activities
which it audits; is adequately resourced; and has
appropriate standing within the Group to perform its role
effectively.

Enterprise Risk Management

In 2005 the Company appointed an external consultant to
assist management in implementing a Risk Management
framework for the business of the Company. The Risk
Management framework covers all aspects of the
Company’s operations to enable significant business risks
within the Group’s current business environment to be
identified, assessed, monitored, managed and evaluated.
As part of the on-going risk management process, the
Company’s Group Risk Committee conducts a risk
assessment, evaluation and treatment; considers the
adoption of adequate and cost-effective system of
internal controls to mitigate significant business risks;
and provides for significant risks to be managed through
regular reviews by the Company’s Group Risk Committee
and the Audit and Risk Committee. The Audit and Risk
Committee has reviewed the Group’s risk management
processes and procedures and is satisfied that there are
adequate internal controls in place to manage the
significant risks identified.

13. Directors’ Reporting

The Board of Directors is accountable to its shareholders
for the Company’s consolidated financial statements as
well as the financial information as shown in the annual
report. The Company’s financial statements are prudently
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and are independently reviewed by an
international audit firm every quarter with a full audit
performed at each year-end. All pertinent information
relating to the financial statements are clearly and
completely disclosed in the accompanying notes.

Through the implementation of various policies, system
of internal control and the work of the internal and
external auditors, the Board of Directors is reasonably
satisfied with the integrity and reliability of the
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Company’s financial report and safeguard of assets.
Additionally, the Audit and Risk Committee has been
tasked to review the Company’s financial report and
internal control practices directly with the external
auditors for an impartial and non-biased feedback.
‘Opinion of the Board of Directors on the Company’s
system of Internal Control’ is disclosed in the Company’s
2006 Annual Report and Form 56-1.

14. Relations with Investors

The Company discloses all general and financial
information correctly, completely, transparently and on a
timely manner particularly any information which may
affect the price of the Company’s securities. All
information is communicated to investors, shareholders
and relevant sectors through the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, the SET Community Portal (New ELCID).

Mr. Surapon Supratya (Group Managing Director) is the
‘Liaison Officer to represent the Company in
communicating with individual investors, shareholders,
stock analysts and state agencies. Investors may
communicate with the Laison Officer at tel. 66 (o) 2677
4455 extension 425 or through the Company’s corporate
website (www.lagunaresorts.com) where the latest
financial reports and other corporate information are also
available.
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Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited has a
Statement of Business Conduct to guide its Board of
Directors, senior management and all rank and file
employees in the use of inside information for the purpose
of preserving the interest of all stakeholders of the
Company. To prevent misuse of sensitive or confidential
corporate information, the Company’s policy prohibits
any employee, regardless of rank, from disclosing such
corporate information for personal gain or for any other
reason not in the Company’s interest. Sensitive and
confidential information is also restricted to only those
officers who have a direct responsibility over such matters.
Additionally, the Company monitors the trading of the
Company’s shares by its directors, senior management
who are required to report on the holding of the
Company’s shares in accordance with the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

Between 70 percent and 8o percent of our rooms revenue
is denominated in hard currencies, predominantly the US
dollar. Because the vast majority of our expenses are
incurred in Thai Baht, changes in the value of the Thai
Baht against the US dollar can cause fluctuations in the
results of our operations. Devaluations in the US dollar
against the Thai Baht would consequently have an
adverse effect on our reported financial results.

The Company does not have significant assets or liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies with the exception of
the Banyan Tree Lijiang hotel (which was completed and
opened in April 2006 which at 31" December 2006
represented approximately 7 percent of the group’s total
assets) and a financial instrument which has hedged the
impact of the movement in Thai Baht : US dollar
exchange rate on the reported financial results. This
financial instrument has effectively converted Thai Baht
loans to US dollar denominated loans and as a result the
impact on exchange rate movements on the US dollar
revenue streams are hedged by the resulting exchange
gain or loss on the restatement on these US dollar
denominated loans in the financial statements.

EcoNomMY AND TOURISM IN THAILAND

As most of the Company’s revenue is generated from
tourism and property sales in Thailand, the Company has
exposure to both the world and Thai economies and the
tourism industry in Thailand. Any conditions, such as
changes in the attractiveness of Thailand as a tourism
destination, an economic downturn, acts of terrorism,
natural disasters, increased levels of criminal activity, civil
unrest or epidemics which affect tourism in Thailand or
result in a depression in property values in Phuket, may
have an adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition, profitability and results of operations.

The tourism industry in Thailand has been particularly
impacted in the last several years by terrorist attacks in
New York and Bali, the Iraq War, SARS, Bird Flu and most
recently the Tsunami in the Indian Ocean on 26"
December 2004. These events have had a flow on effect
onto the Company’s results. Conversely the property
market in Phuket has boomed since 2003 (although a
slow down was experienced in 2005 following the
Tsunami) and this has had the effect of more than
compensating for the reduction in the hotels revenues
and profitability. We see property sales as being an
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important growth area for the Company and will assist in

diversifying risk.
COMPETITION
Destination

Indonesia has continuing stability problems, which has a
direct impact on tourism in the region. This affects Bali in
particular, which is the main direct competitor to Phuket.
Subsequent to the October 2002 bombing, Bali has been
marketing itself with aggressive rates worldwide which
has resulted in a gradual return to its normal business
levels. Fortunately Bali’s and Phuket’s high and low
seasons are out of phase with one another, and our rate
strategies are not greatly affected by Bali’s discounting.

Hotels

The competitive set of the Laguna Phuket hotels
comprises the JW Marriott Resort & Spa, Le Meridien
Phuket Beach Resort, the Le Royal Meridien Phuket Yacht
Club, the Movenpick Resort & Spa, the Hilton Arcadia
Resort & Spa and to a lesser extent the Amanpuri and
Trisara, all of which are located in Phuket. There are still
relatively few hotel projects announced or under
construction. The only new projects that would be con-
sidered to be in our competitive set are the Hyatt
Regency (planned to open in late 2007), the Shangri-La
Resort & Spa (planned to open at the end of 2008) and
the Conrad (yet to re-open) respectively. The renovation
of the Laguna Phuket hotels during 2006 will ensure the
product offering is up-to-date and remains competitive.

Low Season

Low season in Phuket is from May until October and the
hotels normally run at low occupancies with reduced
room rates. The hotels in Laguna Phuket have joined
forces and launched a promotional campaign targeting
the regional market, as well as the meetings and
incentives business. The “Laguna Phuket Plus” campaign
has been a particular success in Laguna Phuket’s com-
petitive advantage, and will continue to be further
enhanced. The resumption of direct flights from Hong
Kong in December 2006 and the newly commenced
direct flights from Australia in November 2006 will also
assist to drive business during the low season.
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OPERATING Risks INHERENT IN THE HoOSPITALITY
INDUSTRY

Our hotels are subject to operating risks inherent in the
hospitality industry. These risks include:

seasonality of the industry in that we are subject to

different levels of tourism and business/commercial
travel across the year, and thereby our revenues tend to
vary within the year;

« our dependence on travel patterns and preferences
with respect to Phuket;

« changes in regulatory conditions in Thailand;

periodic local oversupply of or reduced demand for

guest accommodation, which may adversely affect
occupancy rates and actual room rates achieved;

« changes in general, regional and local economic
conditions which may effect, among other things, the
disposable income of consumers and the traveling
public and which may not be offset by increased
revenues;

. regional and local political and social conditions
affecting market demand, including crime, civil disorder

and terrorism;
« epidemics affecting the travel and tourism industries;

« travel advisories cautioning people to defer and/or avoid
travel;

. foreign exchange rate movement;

« convenience of access to Thailand and in particular the
airline capacity into Thailand and Phuket; and

« adverse weather conditions and natural disasters such
as the Tsunami in the Indian Ocean which occurred at
the end of 2004.

Any of these factors could have an adverse effect on our
business and management monitor each of these closely
so that our strategies can be quickly adapted to any
changes in the operating environment.

MANAGEMENT Risk

Our success depends largely on the skills, experience and
performance of key members of our senior management
team. If we were to lose one or more of these key
employees, our ability to set and implement successfully
our strategy could be adversely affected. Our future
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success also depends on the continued service of our key
operating, marketing, design and administrative

personnel.
LAND TITLE

In recent years, there have been a number of disputes in
Thailand relating to property owners having valid title to
their properties. Although we are confident that the
Group has valid title to all the land upon which it operates
or which is for sale by it in Thailand, there can be no
assurance that other parties will not challenge our claim
of title. Even if such challenges are not successful, they
may have a material adverse effect on our property sales
business in Thailand if purchasers express concern that
we are unable to transfer good title to them.

THAI LABOUR LAWS

Nearly all of our employees are based in Thailand. Labour
laws in Thailand are highly protective of employees.
Under Thai labour laws, we are generally prohibited from
discharging employees without compensation absent
gross misconduct, neglect, or acts of dishonesty. As such,
we have limited measures at our disposal to reduce head-
count in order to increase efficiencies, reduce costs or
achieve similar objectives. During the outbreak of SARS
in 2003, we were restricted from dismissing employees
and could only institute a voluntary unpaid leave
program. We have been restricted in the past and expect
in the future to be limited to using voluntary separation
plans where we are required to pay high amounts of
severance pay and similar measures under which selected
employees may elect to leave us in return for lump-sum
compensation packages and other benefits.
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PERSONS WITH MUTUAL INTEREST AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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It is the group’s policy to ensure that there is no conflict
of interest when related party transactions are executed.
All existing related party transactions are communicated
by each concerning operation on a quarterly basis and
reviewed by management. New proposed related party
transactions are identified by and/or communicated to
higher level management and the transactions are
approved by either the shareholders, directors or senior
management in accordance with the requirements of the
Securities Exchange Commission. All new significant
related party transactions (not requiring shareholders
approval) are presented to the independent directors in
the Audit and Risk Committee for opinion which includes
demonstrating that the transaction is on commercial
terms and on an arms length basis. Once recommended
by the Audit and Risk Committee the transaction is
approved by the Board of Directors whereby interested
directors do not take part in approving the transaction.

Future policy or tendency of related transactions

It is the intention of the Company to minimise the
incidence of related party transactions wherever practicable.
However given the nature of the group structure and the
groups business it is not possible to cease many of the
current transactions. As a result the group’s future policy
is geared towards ensuring that all current and future
transactions are necessary and are on commercial terms
and on arms length basis.
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wIAsunisAUs:iu / GUARANTEE

Details of operating agreements with persons with
mutual interest are included in note 7 and note 27 to the

financial statements.

As at 31" December 2006, the Company and its
subsidiaries have contingent liabilities in respect of letter
of guarantees issued to banks to gurantee facilities of the

group companies as follows:-

(17w : %iuum) (Unit : Thousand Baht)

2549 [ 2006 2548 [ 2005

qnnaf’iﬁwads:fauds’ouua:swmss:wd'mﬁu (i9)

PERSONS WITH MUTUAL INTEREST AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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(CONTINUED)

(v1i28 : %iuumn) (Unit : Thousand Baht)

2549 [ 2006 2548 [ 2005

(a) Both Bangtao (2) Limited and Bangtao (4) Limited
have guaranteed Laguna Holiday Club Limited for the

same credit facility amounting to Baht 300 million
from a bank.

In regard to loans between the Company and its
subsidiaries, other loans between subsidiaries of the
Company which involve persons with mutual interest and
the amounts due to / from subsidiary companies and
related companies, the individually significant balances
are disclosed in aggregate in note 7 to the financial
statement.
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(1) CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE COURT,

PRe-TRAIL CAsE No. 3049/2544 BETWEEN:

MR. DEaAw CHANTAWONG “PLAINTIFF”

PHUKET ProVINCIAL LAND OFFICE “DEFENDANT”
BANGTAO DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  “Co-DEFENDANT”
LAGUNA GRANDE LIMITED “Co-DEFENDANT”
LAGUNA (1) LimiTED “Co-DEFENDANT”
LAGUNA (3) LimiTED “Co-DEFENDANT”
LAGUNA REsorTs & HOTELS

PusLic ComPANY LIMITED “Co-DEFENDANT”

Background

On 7" August 2001, the plaintiff brought the case to
the Central Administrative Court against the defendant
and requested the Court to order the defendant to
revoke some land title deeds owned by Bangtao
Development Limited, Laguna Grande Limited,
Laguna (1) Limited, Laguna (3) Limited, and Laguna
Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited. The plaintiff
claimed that some title deeds under the ownership of
the said companies have been issued improperly.
Because the land as referred to above are owned by
the said companies, they became co-defendants in
this case.

The present circumstance

On 15" August 2006, the Central Administrative Court
of First Instance made the judgment in favor of the
defendants. The plaintiff did not lodge the appeal
against the aforementioned judgment within the
deadline period as prescribed by the law. Furthermore,
on 16" November 2006, the Certificate to the End of
the Case, No. 9/2549 was issued by the Central
Administrative Court of First Instance to formally
confirm the end of this case. As a result, this case is

deemed absolutely final by law.

The opinion of the lawyer

The Certificate to the End of the Case, No. 9/2549
dated 16" November 2006 issued by the Central
Administrative Court stated that this case came to an
end in the Administrative Court of First Instance
because the Central Administrative Court has read its
judgment on 15" November 2006 in favor of the
defendants, and that there was no appeal lodged

against the judgment. Therefore, this case had officially
ended.
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The executive opinion
This case is one of several cases where we protect our
land title rights through the Courts as normally
practiced by the Company. We are confident that the
land titles were properly issued. As a result, we have
prevailed in this case.

(2) CRIMINAL CAseE ofF THE ProvinciAL COURT OF

PHUKET, PRE-TRIAL CASE No. 3496/2542 BETWEEN:

PuBLic PROSECUTOR “PLAINTIFF”

LAGUNA GRANDE LIMITED “Co-PLAINTIFF”
MR. AKARA MUMIN “1sT DEFENDANT”
MR. SuwiIT CHIDCHIEW “2ND DEFENDANT”

MRs. SOMPORN PANMANEE “3RD DEFENDANT”

Background

The Company reported to the Cherngtalay subdistrict
police station in January 1999 that the defendants had
trespassed on its land covered by title deed 5916. The
inquiry officer investigated and found that the
defendants were trespassing on the said land to
conduct their business with a view to taking possession
of the land intentionally. Therefore, the inquiry officer
prepared a prosecution charge against the defendants.
The case was then handed over to the Phuket public
prosecutor for action. A prosecution charge was then
issued against the defendants by the public prosecutor.
In late 1999, the Company submitted a request to be a
co-plaintiff in this case in hope of obtaining a
judgement requiring the defendants to demolish
their construction and remove it from the land. On
15" October 2004, the Phuket Provincial Court found
in favor of the p|ainti1ch.

The present circumstance

The defendants have appealed against the judgment
of the Court of First Instance to the Appeal Court.
Currently, this case is pending judgment of the
Appeal Court.

The opinion of the lawyer
We believe that the Company shall prevail at the
Appeal Court.

The executive opinion

This case is one of several cases where we protect our
land title rights through the Courts as normally
practiced by the Company. This case should not affect
our ongoing operations.
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(3) CIVIL CASES AGAINST TRESPASSERS ON LAND AT

SHERATON GRANDE LAGUNA PHUKET

Case No. 1716/2541 oF PHUKET PrRovINCIAL COURT
BETWEEN:

BANGTAO DEVELOPMENT LIMITED “PLAINTIFE”

MRs. BUNMEE SITHICHAI “DEFENDANT”

Caske No. 1717/2541 oF PHUKET PROVINCIAL COURT
BETWEEN:

BANGTAO DEVELOPMENT LIMITED “PLAINTIFF”

MRs. WAsSANA AR-Mub “DEFENDANT”

Background

These cases relate to hawkers who have trespassed on
the land title NS3 374, which belongs to Bangtao
Development Limited. Cases against the defendants
were brought to court on 19" November 1998 alleging
trespassing on this land. The Court of First Instance
and the Appeal Court found in favor of the defendants,
reasoning that the Court was not able to find evidence
that the defendants had trespassed on the Company’s
land, and dismissed the plaintiff’s claim. The plaintiff
later appealed against the judgments to the Appeal
Court and the Supreme Court.

The present circumstances

The case No. 1716/2541 is deemed as final due to the
judgment in favor of the defendant made by the
Supreme Court on the 25" August 2006.

Regarding the case No. 1717/2541, the Appeal Court
made the judgment on 14" November 2006 in favor of
the defendant. The plaintiff has lodged the appeal
against the aforementioned judgment and this is
currently pending judgment of the Supreme Court.

The opinion of the lawyer

Regarding the case No. 1717/2541, as pending at the
Supreme Court, further related legal points had been
presented to the Court and no further hearings are

required.

The executive opinion

This case is one of several cases where we protect our
land title rights through the Courts as normally
practiced by the Company, and should not affect our
ongoing operations.
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(4) CRIMINAL CASE WITH CHARGE OF ENCROACHMENT

ON THE STATE PROPERTY AT LAGUNA BEACH RESORT
HoTeL, BLack CAse No. 1635/2548 BETWEEN:

PHUKET PuBLic PROSEcUuTOR “ProsecuTor”
LAGUNA BeacH CLuB LIMITED “1sT Accusep”
MR. PHITAK

BOONPOJANASOONTORN “2ND Accusep”

Background

On 24" April 2005, the prosecutor brought this case to
the Phuket Provincial Court charging the accused as
having jointly encroached on the state property which
is for the use of the public. If the Company were to
lose this case then it would be required to tear down
the offending structures of the beachfront bar, the
water sports building and a sala.

The present circumstances

On 28" March 2006, the Phuket Provincial Court of
First Instance made the judgment in favor of the
accused by dismissing the prosecution of the public
prosecutor. The public prosecutor has lodged the
appeal against the aforementioned judgment and this
is currently pending judgment of the Appeal Court.

The opinion of the lawyer

The accused constructed the Laguna Beach Resort
Hotel in compliance with the plan that had been
approved by all of the respective authorities and
before the boundary lines were declared as the state

property.
The executive opinion
As all of the licenses and permits required to construct

the hotel have been obtained, we are confident that
we will prevail in this case.
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LAGUNA REsoRrTs & HoTELs PusLic CoMPANY LIMITED

Based upon the reports of work carried out by the external
auditors, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that the
Company’s internal accounting controls are adequate
and have enabled the external auditors to opine that the
financial statements for the year ended 2006 are presented
fairly. The Board has also taken note of and accepted the
Audit and Risk Committee’s report on the internal control
system and therefore concludes that there are no material
weaknesses in the Company’s internal control system.
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REPORT OF THE AuDIT AND Risk COMMITTEE
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The Audit and Risk Committee of Laguna Resorts & Hotels
Public Company Limited comprises three Independent
Directors. It is empowered to:-

. review the Company’s financial reports, internal
controls, disclosure of related party transactions and
compliance with all relevant regulations and laws;

« recommend special audit plans to the internal auditor;

« advise management on matters related to the
principles of good corporate governance;

« recommend the appointment of the Company’s
external auditors and their remuneration;

« review or discuss policies regarding risk assessment
and risk management and the steps management has
taken to monitor and control such exposures; and

« seek to oversee and ensure a continuous process for
managing risk.

During 2006 the Audit and Risk Committee convened six
meetings four of which were with the Company’s
external auditors to review compliance with accounting
and internal controls prior to approving the quarterly
reports and the annual financial statements. These
meetings also included discussions with the Company’s
internal auditor to review and advise on its findings and
to follow up on matters arising from the schedule of work
it had approved the internal auditor to undertake during
2006 thereby ensuring that this work was both sufficient
and effective. In regards to risk management, the Audit
and Risk Committee reviewed the risk registers of the
Company’s major business units with the Company’s
Group Risk Committee. During the review, the Audit and
Risk Committee advised on mitigation measures for
identified risks and checked that the risk management
policies and work undertaken by the Company’s Group
Risk Committee continues to be adequate and effective.

In addition to the quarterly meetings, an additional
meeting was convened to specifically consider the risk
management process and its reporting structure to
ensure that risk management remains an ongoing
process. The Audit and Risk Committee also sought
assurance that the action plans for each completed risk is
embedded in the culture of the group.

Each of the Audit and Risk Committee members
attended all the six meetings convened in 2006.

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that the
Group’s internal controls are sufficient both to support its
operations and to enable the external auditors to express
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an opinion on the financial statements that they present
fairly in all material respects the financial position and
results of its operations. Where internal control
weaknesses have been detected during the course of the
Audit and Risk Committee’s reviews these have not been
considered material and in all cases management has
been alerted and has taken appropriate corrective action.

Despite the complexity of the Group’s structure which
primarily arises from the integration of several resorts at
Laguna Phuket, the Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied
that all related party transactions that were reviewed by it
and arose in 2006 were fair and reasonable and had been
entered into on an arms length basis applying the
principles of an open market between willing parties.

The interests of all shareholders remain the principal
objective of the Audit and Risk Committee. The
Company’s operating results and financial reports are
therefore reviewed for transparency and completeness. In
this regard the Audit and Risk Committee has been able
to satisfactorily resolve all matters arising within the
terms of its Charter with both the management and the
external and internal auditors.

The Audit and Risk Committee has recommended the
Board to re-appoint Ms. Rungnapa Lertsuwankul,
Certified Public Accountant No. 3516 and/or Mr. Sophon
Permsirivallop, Certified Public Accountant No. 3182
andfor Ms. Sumalee Reewarabandith, Certified Public
Accountant No. 3970 of Ernst & Young Office Limited to
be the Company’s auditors for the fiscal year 2007 with a
recommended audit fee of Baht 690,000.

=X

(Steven M. Small)
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman
9" February 2007
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REFERENCES

REGISTRARS:

The Stock Exchange of Thailand

The Stock Exchange of Thailand Bui|ding,
62 Radchadaphisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel. 66 (0) 2229 2000 Fax. 66 (0) 2654 5649

The Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
The Stock Exchange of Thailand Bui|ding,

62 Radchadaphisek Road, Klongtoey,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel. 66 (0) 2229 2800 Fax. 66 (0) 2359 1259

AuDITOR:

Ernst & Young Office Limited by

Ms. Rungnapa Lertsuwankul, C.P.A. No. 3516 and/or
Mr. Sophon Permsirivallop, C.P.A. No. 3182 and/or
Ms. Sumalee Reewarabandith, C.P.A. No. 3970

P.O. Box 1047, Bangkok 10501

33 floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex,

193/136-137, Rachadaphisek Road,

K|ongtoey, Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel. 66 (0) 2264 o777 Fax. 66 (0) 2264 0789-90

LEGAL COUNSELORS:

Allen & Overy (Thailand) Company Limited
22" floor, Sindhorn Building 111,

130 Wireless Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan,
Bangkok 10330, Thailand

Tel. 66 (0) 2263 7600 Fax. 66 (0) 2263 7699

Linklaters (Thailand) Limited

20" floor, Capital Tower All Seasons Place,
87/1 Wireless Road, Bangkok 10330, Thailand
Tel. 66 (0) 2305 8000, 66 (0) 2654 3130

Fax 66 (0) 2305 8010, 66 (0) 2654 3131

Amphon, Kittiporn, Anuporn & Associates Law Office
80/2 Trok Sathien, Tanao Road, Bangkok 10200, Thailand
Tel. 66 (0) 2622 0200  Fax 66 (0) 2622 0198-9

FINANCIAL ADVISOR:
-None-

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited,
Head Office

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited,
Sathorn Branch

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited,
Phuket Branch

Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited, Head Office
Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited, Silom Branch
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Head Office
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Silom Branch
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BANGkok OFFICE

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
6", 22"-23" Floor, Thai Wah Tower 1,

21/12A, 21/13, 21/65B, 21/66B, 21/67

South Sathorn Road, Tungmahamek, Sathorn,
Bangkok 10120, Thailand

Tel: 66 (0) 2677 4455 Fax: 66 (0) 2285 0980
Email: ir@lagunaphuket.com

PHUKET OFFICE

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited
390/1 Moo 1, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand

Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4416 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4061
Email: info@lagunaphuket.com

HoTELs

Banyan Tree Bangkok

21/100 Thai Wah Tower 2, South Sathorn Road,
Bangkok 10120, Thailand

Tel: 66 (0) 2679 1200 Fax: 66 (0) 2679 1199
Email: bangkok@banyantree.com

Banyan Tree Lijiang

PO Box 55,

Lijiang 674100 Yunnan,

People’s Republic of China

Tel: 86 888 533 1111 Fax: 86 888 533 2222
Email: lijiang@banyantree.com

Banyan Tree Phuket

33 Moo 4, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngta|ay, Tha|ang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4374 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4375
Email: phuket@banyantree.com

Dusit Laguna Resort

390 Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngta|ay, Tha|ang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4324 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4174
Email: dlp@dusit.com

Laguna Beach Resort

323 Moo 2, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngta|ay, Tha|ang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (o) 7632 4352 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4353
Email: info@lagunabeach-resort.com

16OSIAU UNSUA AU QIARn

10 ¥y 4 OUUAT UNT MUATINELD

gunenan 3amiagifia 83110 Yszmelne

Tnsdwit 66 (0) 7632 4101-7  In3 13 66 (0) 7632 4108
= 4 .

owd sheraton.phuket@luxurycollection.com

daaiuan aigun QIR

29 M1 4 aUUAS UNT MuaFINzia

gunenan 3miagfia 83110 dszmelng

Tnsenw 66 (0) 7632 4359 3 15 66 (0) 7632 4360
diud  sales-phuket@allamanda.com

aun godng AAU NIM § asn

61 M3 4 OUUAT UNT MUaTINIa

gunenan 3amiagifia 83110 Yszmelne

Tnsdwit 66 (0) 7627 1888 Tn3 13 66 (0) 7625 6940

NIUUSNISAU
aQun QIAn nadu Aau
34 M3 4 oUUAS UNT MuaFInzia
gunenan 3miagfia 83110 dszmelng
Tnsdwyl 66 (0) 7632 4350 3 15 66 (0) 7632 4351
dd  golf@lagunaphuket.com

1A aQun QIR udmouIas

322/1 M3 2 OUUAT UNT AuATINzIA

gunenan 3amiagifia 83110 Yszmelne

Tnsdwi 66 (0) 7632 4062-3 N5 15 66 (0) 7632 4058
= 4

awd quest@lagunaphuket.com

ATUa 3alao anun Gaulv

390/1 ¥y 1 OUUAT UNT Mualanzia

gunenan 3miagfia 83110 dszmelng

TnsAwd 66 (0) 7632 4453-7 I3 15 66 (0) 7632 4066
8d  shopping@lagunaphuket.com

aiun 18nG1AasSEU

390/1 ¥y 1 OUUAT UNT Auaanzia

gunenan 3miagfia 83110 Uszmelne

Tnsdwit 66 (0) 7632 4453-7 N3 13 66 (0) 7627 0497
= 4

wd tours@lagunaphuket.com

agun wlewiwesh 1va -

390/1 ¥y 1 OUUAT UNT Mualanzia

gunenan Wmiagfia 83110 Uszmelne

Tnsenwd 66 (0) 7632 4366 Tn3 15 66 (0) 7632 4065
dd  property@lagunaphuket.com

nuUSN1sau

FAciLITIES

Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket

10 Moo 4, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4101-7 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4108
Email: sheraton.phuket@luxurycollection.com

Allamanda Laguna Phuket

29 Moo 4, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4359 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4360
Email: sales-phuket@allamanda.com

Laguna Holiday Club Phuket Resort

61 Moo 4, Srisoonthorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (o) 7627 1888 Fax: 66 (0) 7625 6940

FAcILITIES

LAGUNA PHUKET GoLF CLus

34 Moo 4, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4350 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4351
Email: golf@lagunaphuket.com

QUEST LAGUNA PHUKET ADVENTURE

322/1 Moo 2, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4062-3 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4058
Email: quest@lagunaphuket.com

CANAL VILLAGE LAGUNA SHOPPING

390/1 Moo 1, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngta|ay, Tha|ang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4453-7 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4066
Email: shopping@lagunaphuket.com

LAGUNA Excursions

390/1 Moo 1, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngta|ay, Tha|ang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4453-7 Fax: 66 (0) 7627 0497
Email: tours@lagunaphuket.com

LAGUNA PROPERTY SALES

390/1 Moo 1, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngta|ay, Tha|ang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (o) 7632 4366 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4065
Email: property@lagunaphuket.com
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LAGUNA HoLipAy CrLus Phuket Office

390/1 Moo 1, Srisoontorn Road,
Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7627 0941, (0) 7627 0943

Fax: 66 (0) 7627 0946

Email: holidayclub@lagunaphuket.com

LAGUNA HoLipAy CLus Bangkok Office
7" Floor, Thai Wah Tower 1,
21/15 South Sathorn Road,
Bangkok 10120, Thailand
Tel: 66 (o) 2679 2855-7
Email: adminbkk@lagunaphuket.com

Fax: 66 (0) 2679 2844

LAGUNA HoLipAy Crus Bintan Office
PT. AVC Indonesia

c/o Angsana Resort & Spa,

Suite # 136 - 137, Site A 4 Lagoi,
Bintan Island 29155, Indonesia

Tel: 62 77 0693 227-8 Fax: 62 77 0693 229
Email: adminbintan@lagunaphuket.com

LAGUNA SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED

57 Moo 4, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (o) 7632 4370-1 Fax: 66 (0) 7632 4418
WEDDING CHAPEL [ SOUTH PAcIFic BRIDAL
THAILAND

Unit 29, Canal Village

390/1 Moo 1, Srisoontorn Road,

Cherngtalay, Thalang, Phuket 83110, Thailand
Tel: 66 (0) 7632 4453 Fax: 66 (0) 7627 1863
Email: weddings@lagunaphuket.com

THAI WAH PLAZA LiMITED

6" floor, Thai Wah Tower 1,
21/12A, 21/13 South Sathorn Road,
Bangkok 10120, Thailand

Tel: 66 (0) 2677 4455 Fax: 66(0) 2285 0980
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